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Revenue (RMB million) L ONON-:-=F--F))
Adjusted gross profit/(loss) margin KARER, (B) X (H:Z)
(Note)

Consolidated net profit/(loss) ABEFEFE,(EE)
(RMB million) (ANREFET)

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RNARRREMLFIE, (EE)
shareholders of the Company (AR®FZET)
(RMB million)

Net cash generated from operating — #&&&EENELE 2 FH S
activities (RMB million) (ARFEaZET)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) EREAR SRR (EE)
per share (RMB cents) (AR#5)

Proposed final dividend BEERRHRE
per share (HKD cents) GEM)

Note: Adjusted gross profit/(loss) margin represents gross profit less Hiat -

impairment losses for trade and bills receivables and contract
assets.

Financial Highlights
MBRE

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
(Approximately) (Approximately)
(#49) (#49)
3,263.6 3,055.83
11.1% (13.8%)
72.1 (995.8)
72.1 (995.8)

76.8 134.1
1.16 (16.04)
NIL & NIL £
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Corporate Culture & Mission

R R Ewm

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers

Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby
present to you the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

In 2022, the world economy was affected by multiple
uncertainties, and the recovery process remained relatively slow.
In view of the recurrence of the epidemic in many parts of the
country, the government optimized and adjusted its epidemic
prevention policies, laying a foundation for the improvement
of economic activities. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s gross domestic product (the “GDP”) grew by
3% year-on-year for the year, and China’s economy was able to
make steady progress. Experiencing the market reshuffle and
the impact of the pandemic for the past three years, the real
estate industry has reshaped development pattern. The Group
responded to the changing industry with robust operation.

During the Reporting Period, with the guidance of “product-
driven, technology-leading, customer-oriented and value-
creating”, the Group closely followed the changes in domestic
and overseas market conditions, deeply cultivated high-quality
customers and markets, improved the overall contract quality
and stabilised operational risks. Meanwhile, we will further
promoted the reform of internal management, implemented
operation with accountability, improved quality and efficiency
and reduced costs to support the steady development of our
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB72.1 million (2021: loss of approximately RMB995.8
million). The main reason was the decrease in expected credit
losses on financial and contract assets and other receivables.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BRI

RAERKRERPEZERER AR (XA
A REMB AR (5 [ A6/ =k [EX
FEDESF(EE)2([EBg)) ME
TERAEEHZE2022F12 A31HILF
E([$REME ) 2 FEmE -

20224 - MM REEZ L EIEEMEERT
2 EEERDALEE BAZMERE
K38 - BUSEEARDRRE - AEBEE
BMIEETE TER R SEH BREE
KE - 2FHNEELEIGDP] AERE
3% @ MBI EBERIZHIE - BHETE
KMRET RN =F 2 AMSARNEIEE
Z FREATERER - REBEUERL

HER AEEEZERES K5
B RBEP - AEEE] NEEERR - B
RERINTISEBNEL  RHEETP
kWi REEBAREE  BTEZR
@ R ORAHERPERENRE  BER
RELE  REBYREA  EXHRRE
B -

E 3361

HZE2022F 128318 KREEHARQF
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2023, the global political and economic
turmoil continues, with macro policy tightening, interest rate
hiking in major countries and economies, and the impact of the
pandemic on the global supply chain, among other factors, all
imposing multiple challenges to global economic growth. As
China optimizes pandemic management and control policies,
the impact of pandemic gradually subsides, and various
economic stabilization policies take effect, China’s real estate
market is gradually stabilizing and recovering, transitioning to
a new development model. In the face of constantly changing
internal and external environments, the Group will consistently
maintain a cautious and steady development strategy, refine
on quality and customer service, continually reduce costs and
increase efficiency, improve the overall and efficient use of
capital, and continuously enhance operational management.
We will consistently focus on the long-term strategy, overcome
difficulties, and continuously improve shareholder returns and
shareholder value.

Kang Baohua
Chairman
31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

In 2022, the global economy was impacted by multiple
uncertainties, resulting in a relatively slow recovery. Several
regions in the country experienced a resurgence in COVID-19
pandemic, prompting the government to optimize and adjust
its containment policies, thereby laying the groundwork for
economic improvement. According to the data from the
National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s GDP grew by
3% year-on-year, showing a steady growth of China’s economy.
During the Reporting Period, with the guidance of “product-
driven, technology-leading, customer-oriented and value-
creating” , the Group closely followed the changes in domestic
and overseas market conditions, deeply cultivated high-
quality customers and markets, improved the overall contract
quality and stabilised operational risks. Meanwhile, we further
promoted the reform of internal management, implemented
operation with accountability, improved quality and efficiency
and reduced costs to support the steady development of our
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was about RMB72.1
million (2021: a loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of about RMB995.8 million). The
main reason was the decrease in expected credit losses on
financial and contract assets and other receivables.

EEENWEDN

KL
A

2022 % WAREZZETEEMREY
2 EFHFERNDBEYEE BAZHRE
R3E BFEBCRAEHREE  BEEE
B EEE T ER - KBRS BEBE
KE 2FEANLERLEIGDP] RLLER
3% HEKEERIRPNRE - IR - K
SEE®IERED  KMslE| RER
F - elEEE] WEEE8  ZRERINT
BBHNEL  RHEERPEME 1R
SERAAEE REELAR : R
RAHEALERNE - EREELE
REEMER - TEXBREERE -

HZE2022%12 A31H - FRFEA] 8
TARATBRRHOARE 7218 & 7w (2021
F:FABEASETARTRRENAR
¥os8BEEL) TEREAESHEENEH
ReEREERAMEWREBNTEREER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2022, the aggregate amount of newly-awarded
projects of the Group decreased by about RMB2,220.5 million
or 51.0% as compared with last year to about RMB2,137.4
million (2021: about RMB4,357.9 million). The main reason for
the decrease was the impact of the economic environment in
overseas markets and that the Group adopted a more prudent
business strategy to avoid credit risk arising from customers
whose cash flows were affected.

KO (&)

A TR (SI8ER)

20224 » ALEEM AR TIELAELNA
ER#®2,13748 820214 : HARE
43579B &)  RAFRABIHAR
#2,020.5 B E L 51.0% K EE AR
RN IBEEIR BN E RSB RN
ERENCERE BRI BRI
EHEFEENEHARR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
EHEgE AREEE HEHE AREEE
Domestic A 79 1,494.2 51 2,214.9
Overseas SN 37 643.2 19 2,143.0
Total &5t 116 2,137.4 70 4,357.9

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2022, the remaining contract value of
backlog of the Group decreased by about RMB1,533.0 million
or 12.1% as compared with last year to about RMB11,120.5
million (31 December 2021: about RMB12,653.5 million), which
could support a sustainable development of the Group for the
next 2-3 years.

EEENWEDN

KO (&)

R2022F 12 A31H » AEBMARELA
EEBEHARE11,12055 & £ (2021F
128318 HAR®E126535HHTT)
REFRERDHARE1,533.0 88 Tk
12.1% » RUABAEERR2-ZFHEHER
HENZE -

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
SRS TEE SR TEE
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HE#E ARBEE BEEHE ARBES
Domestic A 208 4,799.4 191 4,599.0
Overseas NSZUN 80 6,321.1 87 8,054.5
Total &5t 288 11,120.5 278 12,653.5

Major technology achievements and awards

In 2022, the Group obtained 9 patents for utility model.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2023, the global political and economic
turmoil continues, with macro policy tightening, interest rate
hiking in major countries and economies, and the impact of the
pandemic on the global supply chain, among other factors, all
imposing multiple challenges to global economic growth. As
China optimizes pandemic management and control policies,
the impact of pandemic gradually subsides, and various
economic stabilization policies take effect, China’s real estate
market is gradually stabilizing and recovering, transitioning to
a new development model. In the face of constantly changing
internal and external environments, the Group will consistently
maintain a cautious and steady development strategy, refine
on quality and customer service, continually reduce costs and
increase efficiency, improve the overall and efficient use of
capital, and continuously enhance operational management.
We will consistently focus on the long-term strategy, overcome
difficulties, and continuously improve shareholder returns and
shareholder value.

T BRI SR

2022 FAREEFIEETRMAEFNQIE ©

EBRE

RE2023F - 2RBOAKEHER BN
o REBRENAE  TEBER RN
BREAARREH2RHEERENTE
F EEENEEERDEEZERE -
MEEBEFRERBFERRE > RIENF
BZHHE - ARESAREEBR BN
h BEEMEMSHEETSERIRE - &
A EREN - HHTEZ(CHRINEPR
B AREBHERFBENBROER
REE RBEmEMEPRY - ARG
M REESNRELERRE - THIR
THEEERAKF - U RKRE  WEREH -
TERSRERNE S MRMBREE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the
Group increased by about RMB208.3 million or 6.8% as
compared with last year to about RMB3,263.6 million (2021:
about RMB3,055.3 million). The rise is mainly due to the
gradual recovery of construction progress. Among which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group increased
by about RMB11.0 million or 0.8% as compared with
last year to about RMB1,471.9 million (2021: about
RMB1,460.9 million), contributing approximately 45.1%
of the total revenue of the Group; and

2. the revenue from overseas market of the Group
increased by about RMB197.3 million or 12.4% as
compared with last year to about RMB1,791.7 million
(2021: about RMB1,594.4 million), contributing
approximately 54.9% of the total revenue of the Group.

Cost of sales

In 2022, the cost of sales of the Group increased by about
RMB246.8 million or 9.4% as compared with last year to about
RMB2,876.3 million (2021: about RMB2,629.5 million). With
the increase in revenue during 2022, the related costs of sales
increased correspondingly.

Adjusted gross profit margin

In 2022, the adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
increased by about 24.9% as compared with last year to about
11.1% (2021: about -13.8%). The increase was due to the
decline in impairment loss of trade receivables and contract
assets recognized by the Company. Among which:

1. the domestic adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
increased by about 52.7% as compared with last year to
about 16.1% (2021: about -36.6%); and

2. the overseas adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by about 0.2% as compared with last year to
about 6.9% (2021: about 7.1%).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

g dE)

BEIA

HZE2022F12A31 8 AEBMEEIW
AHAREES,263.6 AETL(20214F + A
R#3,055.3B &) WEAFREE ML
ARE2083EEILHG6.8% - TERE A
TREEZEASIIE o Hr -

1. REBMBIRRALARE,471.9
BET(20214F « Y AR®1,460.9
AEL) BRAFREEMNHARE
11.0 B &5k 0.8% * (U AL
451% : &

2. REBEGINIRAKARE1,791.7
BEIT(2021F : HARM1,504.4
) REFREENHARE
197.3 BB L 12.4% (B A
#154.9% °

20225 AEEWEEKNANARE
2,876.3 B E L (2021 F : HARK2,629.5
BET)  REFRAEMNHARE246.8
BEITL0.4% ° BEE 2022 F & H IR A KL
N (ERASHE R AN thBE 2 3 N o

20224 F REBLHBEEMNEBLH11.1%
(20214F : #9-13.8%) * LLAFREAENT
HW24a0BE DS - MW EZRA R AR
ROEUERRAREEZRBANSE
B o Hep

1. AEBNBEANLEHAEEN XY
16.1% (2021 F : #7-36.6%) @ &%
FRIEEML 2.7 EE DS &

2, NEERGIMEAEENERL6.9%
(20214 : #97.1%) @ BEFRHRE
D02 EBE DL -



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, fair value gain of holding securities, rental income and
net income from provision of repairs and maintenance services.

In 2022, the other income of the Group decreased by about
RMB25.3 million or 49.9% as compared with last year to about
RMB25.5 million (2021: about RMB50.8 million). The decrease
in the Group’s other income was mainly due to the decrease in
government grants and the decrease in the gain on disposal of
assets.

Selling expenses

In 2022, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by about
RMB15.4 million or 21.5% as compared with last year to about
RMB56.5 million (2021: about RMB71.9 million), accounted
for approximately 1.7% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2021: 2.4%). This was mainly due to the strict control of
expenses.

Administrative expenses

In 2022, the administrative expenses of the Group increased
by about RMB7.4 million or 2.0% as compared with last year
to about RMB371.1 million (2021: about RMB363.7 million),
accounted for approximately 11.4% of the operating revenue
of the Group (2021: 11.9%). The decrease in such ratio was
mainly due to the increase in revenue during 2022.

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables

In 2022, the expected credit losses of financial and contract
assets and other receivables of the Group decreased by
about RMB855.7 million or 97.3% as compared with last year
to about RMB24.0 million (2021: about RMB879.7 million),
accounted for 0.7% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2021: 28.8%).

EEENWEDN

M OE (&)
HAbUWA

HttWATEBRBGMHE) - HEEFE
EARBERE BERA - RREHREE
R ARE ARG HY U2 o

20224 - NEEKEMP AL ARKE25.5
BEIL(2021F : HARKES08EET) -
REFRBABRIDOARE253F & Tk
49.9% ° AEBE MU AKE = B RN
IR KR E & EW SRR -

HEEM

20224 - AEERHEEERNARKES6.5
BEL(2021F : HARE7T19BET)
REFRBBLOARBI54TE T
215% hAREBEZWR AWML B AL
1.7% (20214 : 2.4%) c WO EERA
BEROERZ DS o

TR

2022F - AEBEMITHAIHOARE
3711 EB (20214 : HARMKEIE3.7EH
B BEAFRBEMHARK7IES
TTH2.0%  EAKEEZEWANEFIAL
11.4% (2021 : 11.9%) ° Z F 6 T (%
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AR B EUCGR 2 TRERE R BRI AR M
2408 8L (2021 F : H AR ¥S879.78
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBNWEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables (continued)

The calculation of loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets arising from construction projects as at 31
December 2022 was carried out by an independent specialist,
namely Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (the “Valuer”),
with experience in expected credit loss calculation.

Since 2021, certain customers of the Group, in particular, some
property developer customers (the “Defaulted Customers”),
have encountered liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of
the macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19 pandemic,
and have defaulted on their debts. Accordingly, there was
a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets and
contract assets arising from contracts with these Defaulted
Customers.

The Valuer adopted expected credit loss model for calculation
of expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract
assets. The total trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2022 are divided into two risk categories by the
customers as Defaulted Customers and other customers.

For the Defaulted Customers, the expected loss rates are
estimated based on the weighted-average recovery rate of
troubled debts derived from historical market data and have
been adjusted for industry specific information and forward-
looking information. The Group has identified the enterprise
prosperity index and real estate industry enterprise prosperity
index to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the weighted-average recovery rate of troubled debts derived
from historical market data based on expected changes in
these factors.

For other customers, the expected loss rates are estimated
based on the flow rate matrix, which derives historical credit
loss rates across aging analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets based on the flow rates across each aging
grouping over time. The loss level for trade receivables and
contract assets with the customers overdue over 5 years is
similar with those of Defaulted Customers. The method for
calculating the expected credit loss of those overdue over 5
years is assumed to be same as Defaulted Customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets and
other receivables (continued)

As of 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances of trade
receivables and contract assets (after the amounts written-
off) is RMB5,880.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB5,765.6
million). The expected credit loss recognised for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the loss allowance as at 31 December
2022 are RMB43.8 million and RMB2,706.4 million, respectively
(the expected credit loss recognised for the year and the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2021 are RMB791.1million and
RMB2,651.9million, respectively.).

For expected credit loss of the bills receivable from property
developer customers, the Group adopted the same model
as that of Defaulted Customers as these customers of bills
receivables had similar risk profile with Defaulted Customers.
As of 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances of bills
receivable is RMB115.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB107.1
million). The loss allowance for the bills receivable as at 31
December 2022 is RMB38.8 million (31 December 2021:
RMB56.7million.).

For expected credit loss of other receivables, the credit risk
of certain debtors has increased significantly during the year
ended 31 December 2021, thus the outstanding receivable
balances due from these counterparties were considered to be
fully impaired. The expected credit loss reversed for the year
and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 are RMB1.8
million and RMB65.3 million, respectively (the expected credit
loss recognised for the year and the loss allowance as at 31
December 2021 are RMB31.8million and RMB67.1million,
respectively.)

Net finance costs

In 2022, the net finance costs of the Group decreased by
about RMB250.3 million or 243.2% as compared with last year
to about RMB-147.4 million (2021: about RMB102.9 million),
accounted for -4.5% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2021: 3.4%). This was mainly due to the increased foreign
exchange gain.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income tax

In 2022, the net income tax benefit of the Group was about
RMB36.5 million (2021: an income tax benefit of about
RMB54.2 million).

Consolidated net profit/(loss)

As a result of the foregoing, in 2022, the consolidated net profit
of the Group was about RMB72.1 million (2021: a consolidated
net loss of about RMB995.8 million).

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2022, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was about RMB72.1 million (2021: a loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of about RMB995.8
million).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the net current assets of the Group
decreased by about RMB505.9 million or 62.2% as compared
with last year to about RMB307.8 million (31 December 2021:
about RMB813.7 million). This was mainly due to the transfer
of part of the long-term loans to be paid within one year in the
current year.

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted deposits of the Group
decreased by about RMB693.7 million or 49.7% as compared
with last year to about RMB701.1 million (31 December 2021:
about RMB1,394.8 million), mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group decreased by about RMB64.7 million or 22.8%
as compared with last year to about RMB219.5 million (31
December 2021: about RMB284.2 million), mainly denominated
in RMB, USD, Qatar Riyal, Euro, GBP and AUD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB95 million or 10.0% as compared with
last year to about RMB855.0 million (31 December 2021: about
RMB950.0 million). The bank loan as at 31 December 2022
were denominated in RMB, of which approximately RMB855.0
million were repayable within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided
by total assets) was 82.9% (31 December 2021: 83.0%).
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The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on
the average amount of trade and bills receivables and net
contract assets (contract assets less contract liabilities) as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total
revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost
of raw materials and installation cost of the relevant period and
multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the
average amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending
of the relevant period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw
materials of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Turnover days (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables
decreased by about 84 days or 21.8% as compared with last
year to about 302 days (2021: about 386 days).

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables decreased by about 68 days or 17.8% as compared
with last year to about 315 days (2021: about 383 days).

Inventories and contract costs

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used
in fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions
aluminum, glass, steel and sealant. Contract costs are either
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfill a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory.

As at 31 December 2022, the inventory and contract costs of
the Group decreased by about RMB121.2 million or 28.0%
as compared with last year to about RMB310.9 million (31
December 2021: about RMB432.1 million).

Capital expenditure

In 2022, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group
decreased by about RMB8.5 million or 93.4% as compared
with last year to about RMBO0.6 million (2021: about RMB9.1
million), which was mainly the expenditure on the purchase of
piecemeal machinery and equipment in the current year.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in
USD, GBP and AUD. To hedge any foreign exchange risks, the
Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies of the Group. The Group
ensures that net exposure to currency risk arising from assets
and liabilities will be maintained at an acceptable level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment, land use rights pledged for the
Group’s bank loans is RMB358.0 million.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of the time and
other deposits pledged for bank bills and letter of credit issued
by the Group is RMB479.4 million.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of RMB56.4
million bank deposits was frozen. The carrying value of the
deposits pledged to secure the performance and retentions of
construction contracts of the Group is RMB162.3 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2022.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and
associated companies.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets
The Group does not have any future plans for significant

investments or capital assets as at the date of this
announcement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the
“Global Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary
shares were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net
proceeds raised were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The
ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011
and the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from
the Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity,
repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2022, an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,062 million of proceeds from the Global
Offering (of which expansion of production capacity: HK$619
million; repayment of bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge
loan of Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in
research and development: HK$261 million; and expansion of
its sales and marketing network: HK$220 million) was utilized in
accordance with the intended use as stated in the Prospectus.
It is intended that the remaining proceeds of approximately
HK$341 million will be used in accordance to the proposed
allocation as stated in the Prospectus in 1 to 5 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the detail of the net proceeds stated
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as follows: BT
Utilized amount Accumulated
for the year  utilized amount Unutilized Future plans
ended as at amount as at for remaining
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TOTAL &t 2,408 11 2,062 341 341
Employees and remuneration policies 1B 8RR

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 2,511 full-time
employees in total (31 December 2021: 2,769). The decrease
in number of full-time employees was a result of the Group’s
headcount optimization. The Group has sound policies of
management incentives and competitive remuneration, which
align with the interests of management, employees and
shareholders alike. The Group sets its remuneration policy
with reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review
from time to time. The components of the remuneration
package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe benefits
including medical insurance and contributions to pension funds,
as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and share options.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEAE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (EE%), aged 69, is the founder and
Chairman of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive
Director on 26 February 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of
the Liaoning Chamber of Commerce (EZ% EE). Graduated
from Liaoning University (% X2 with a diploma in politics
in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 29 years of experience in the
curtain wall industry and has been responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group since
1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an executive
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (&%
EEE 7). Since the establishment of the Company, Mr.
Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate
strategy formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various other
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu (#EFK), aged 57, chief executive officer
of the Group and an Executive Director of the Company,
obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Engineering from Hunan
University (415 A£2) in 1987 with a major in internal combustion
engineering. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1996 and has more
than 27 years in manufacturing and project management. From
1996 to 1998, Mr. Zhao managed production and technology
works in Shenyang subsidiary of the Group. From 1999 to
2004, Mr. Zhao served as the deputy general manager and
general manager, responsible for the production and project
management work in China. In 2005, Mr. Zhao was assigned
new duty to conduct the projects operations in America and
Africa as a general manager. In 2017, Mr. Zhao was promoted
to the president of global operations of the Group, responsible
for onshore and offshore businesses. On 4 July 2022 Mr. Zhao
was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee,
the CEO and one of the authorised representatives of the
Company. Since 2006 Mr. Zhao has managed more than 100
overseas landmark projects.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ma Minghui (5583#), aged 42, an Executive Director of
the Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management
from Shenyang Institute of Aeronautical Engineering (&%
fize T2 EPR) in 2003 with a major in public administration.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more
than 15 years of experience in human resources management
and budget management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has been the
secretary to the president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma was
promoted to the director of human resources of the Group.

Mr. Wang Hao (E££), aged 42, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management from
Jilin University (F#AZ2) in 2002 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated
more than 15 years of experience in financial management.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei (&%), aged 50, since February 2013, acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., Ltd (BFfF& Kia% TIEAR A A)) (“Shenyang
Yuanda”), one of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in July 2002 and had over 20 years of
experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining the Group,
from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial positions
in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in charge
of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From
2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in
Japanese YKK company. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Zhang held
various key positions including quality control and technology
minister in Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted
as a designer in Middle East Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from
2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer
in Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the
Group’s ACC44 residential buildings, imperial buildings and
commercial bay administration building and other projects. From
2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang
Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer in International
Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of International
Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda, factory
controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (BB E]), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Poon obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a
Bachelor’s degree in laws and a Bachelor’'s degree in business
studies. He was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia
Ltd, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI”) and The
Chartered Governance Institute in UK respectively. He is also
a member of the Technical Consultation Panel and Mainland
China Focus Group of HKCGI.

Mr. Poon has years of experience in listed company regulatory
affairs and governance. He now serves as an executive director
and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 336). Currently, he is also an
independent non-executive director of the following companies:
Sunac China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1918),
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong
stock code: 1292), AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 2080), Sany Heavy Equipment International
Holdings Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631),
Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code:
2869), Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd.
(Hong Kong stock code: 2362) and Yankuang Energy Group
Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1171). Mr. Poon has
ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Titan
Invo Technology Limited (formally known as TUS International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 872)) on 17 July 2020, Tonly
Electronics Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1249,
withdrawn listing) on 8 March 2021 and Honghua Group
Limited (Hong Kong stock code:196) on 1 December 2021.

EEREREEAER

EE(#)
BUIAITES

EHEBELE - 6057 2011 F4 128
EEAEBYIFNITES - BAEREER
BREFRTEEBFEXR R EEEL
B mESELEBNNEReS8ELE

B mEMe quEﬂi"’\ C BRREEF M
BEg BERR ”A(FE,%’D\T
’“ﬂ)&é@lﬁ; BRg - fith

=EBR T/E\EE"AHTTIESE N B
MR T AN E °

EBRAERTERER LT AREEAE
FHBEEZFER - ELEBRAEER
SERER AR (BBRMHMRSE - 336) AUH
TEERRAME - IEE TR
FIRETRRRBELIEHITES - g+
BIERR AR A A (BRI K5 - 1918)
BEERZREVMRBRMHDAERAR (BERMD
5% 1292) » B BB IE R BR A A
(BERMARS  2080) + = —FRFKE
BRAERAR (BERMGRIE : 631) 1 4R
HEBABRAR(FBRMHAN - 2869) :
S)IEER "éiﬁﬁﬁ&“ﬂ(éﬁ‘\*ﬁﬂ\ﬁ
5% :2862) knERREBEROBRA
(BAERMRSE - 1171) © é%f‘ﬁi%ﬂﬂx
TRARIZEIIENITES : 1HN2020F7 H
17 AN ZIE B ER AR A A (AR HE
RERAE - BERMDMRE - 872) 1 2021
FIASHMBNBEFIERBR AT (FA
R EE - 1249 - EHUEE EaL) R
2021 F12 A1 AMARESBEER AR ES
R RSE + 196 ©

CERIDUREHR EROPEERER A

25



26

Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#%#), aged 53 was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 12
April 2011. Mr. Woo has over 29 years of experience in the
accounting and financial services industry. He began his
career as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co
where he qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior
positions as an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities
and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree. He is a member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo is an independent
non-executive director of SMIT Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code:2239). Mr. Woo was an independent non-
executive director of Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 958, subsequently withdrawn listing
voluntarily with effect from 24 February 2020) from 28 June
2019 to 22 April 2020.

Mr. Woo resigned as an independent non-executive director of
IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029) on 25 May 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (¥ H #&), aged 50, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Pang is the managing partner of Benny Pang & Co. who
specializes in capital markets and general corporate and
commercial work. Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang practiced
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong
and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’'s degree in laws
(honors) from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr.
Pang obtained his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and
master’s degree in laws from The College of Law, Sydney and
the University of New South Wales, Australia, respectively. He
has been admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court
of New South Wales, Australia since 1997 and as a solicitor
of the High Court of Hong Kong since 2009. He is a member
of both the Law Society of New South Wales, Australia and
the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Pang was a non-executive
director of Huabang Technology Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 3638) from 12 April 2018 to 30 October 2021,
Janco Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8035) from
27 September 2019 to 5 May 2021 and Sanbase Corporation
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8501) from 8 December 2017
to 30 July 2021 respectively.

Ms. Yang Qianwen (B{&X), aged 30, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 April 2023. Ms.
Yang has over 8 years of experience in finance, audit and
accounting in the PRC. Ms. Yang graduated from the School
of Accounting, Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
and is a certified public accountant, a registered tax adviser
and a registered asset valuer in the PRC. Ms. Yang worked
previously as a senior audit manager at Zhongzhun Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), as a senior
investment manager at the Liaoning branch of Huatai Securities
Co., Ltd., and as the assistant to chairman of EZ A B X &
I £ B R 2 7 (Liaoning Sunflower Education Technology Co.,
Ltd.). Ms. Yang is currently a senior investment manager at
the Liaoning branch of China International Capital Corporation
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3908). She has rich experience in
financial management, taxation, capital operation and auditing
experience.

EEREREEAER

EE(#)
BYFRITEE (F)

THEBEE 505 M20115F4H12A
EZAERBULIERTES - ZAUEELA
NABZEZET  REZESNFTWEE
S8 - 54 A BennyPang&Co. ) E
BAEZA  BNERTISMA G KREZEME
B T1E-1997 F £20094F © T hHERSE
BN ER S BB EMITEERA - 2t
AN 1996 FIES B RS AR BT B o
R1997 F - R ED RN HBUASET K
BAEBRTAZBESERERMESCERRE
T B - FR107 FESTHEB ISR
VEBL R ER A K A ZEEAD - WA 2009 G &
SEESEEARRAANAEHEM - A
FEEBIEMBeeE R EEMEY
B ZhREBKEDRIEEUNT AR ZEL
EHMITESE - B201844 A 12 H ZF 2021
10 A 30 HHAMMEH R EIZERER A A
(BB - 3638) : BH201949 A27
AZE2021F5 A5 MM S ERER
NE (BB HB RS : 8035) LAKE 2017 &F
12A8HZE2021F7 A0 B HFEMNHEESE
EAR (HERMHASE  8501) »

BEZE L 305 M2023F4H18H
BELZERBYIENTES - RTPEEEAS
FHeR - BAREFITELR BT
EENRILPERESEZER - BRET
e sran - MR AR R E E T
Bl o B LRI E TR AR B 5 AT (4
KEBER) RETEE  BEEERES
BOBRAREES DA RITELRE
WHEAESNARYEREERARES
R - BrTHRATEBEESRRNOE
AR (—MRERFAEREM AR - &
MR5E : 3008) BE D R AIERITE LR o
TRV BEIR - B BRNEERERTH
AHEEYEEE -

CERIDUREHR EROPEERER A

27



i
i

28

Directors and Senior Management
EERESREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended
31 December 2022. All Directors are not involved in any matters
concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R=&), aged 46, was appointed
as the company secretary and authorized representative of the
Company in June 2012 and has over 22 years of experience in
corporate services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined
Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited and is currently the company’s
managing partner. Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary
of Beijing Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code:1000),
and Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631) and independent non-
executive director of Realord Group Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 1196), Dowway Holding Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 8403), The Sincere Company, Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 244) and CSMall Group Limited (Hong Kong stock
code:1815), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong,
since March 2010, February 2017, June 2014, October 2019,
June 2021 and November 2021, respectively. Mr. Yu graduated
from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s degree (Honour)
in Commerce in 2000 and from the University of London with
a Bachelor’'s degree in Law in 2005. He is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practicing Accountants of Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Trust Practitioner
of the Hong Kong Trustee Association.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Zhonggqiu (&%), Chief Executive Officer of the
Company — see the paragraph under “Executive Directors”
above.

Mr. Tian Wei (H&), the chief financial officer of the Company,
aged 48, obtained his bachelor’s degree from Shenyang
University (%5 AE) in 1999 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Tian joined the Group in 2001 and has over 22 years
extensive experience in financial management and accounting
work. In 2005, Mr. Tian was promoted as the head of the
financial accounting department in Shanghai subsidiary of
the Group. In 2008, Mr. Tian was appointed as the financial
manager of international subsidiary of the Group. Since June
2020, Mr. Tian has worked for the financial department of the
Group as the general manager, responsible for planning and
management of financial accounting, taxation matters, costing
and corporate finance of the Group.

EEREREEAER

SREEAER

it

HEREE BEFRATE - B2HLX
[BTES| B

HEEE  EFEMBEE - 485% - 1999 F
BENEGRE  ABBA - S5tHE-
M 547 2001 FIMAREE KRR IEE R
MEstHE 28 22 F4&E8 - 722005 4F -
M EwRAARNER LGHE A RIME
EEPIEE - 20084 » MALEEF AN
SEEEMEARMELE - 5202046
A BEAERTASENBIREE -
BEAEBPBER - BE - RARDE
BMETE-

CERIDUREHR EROPEERER A

29



i
i

30

Corporate Governance Report
RERRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance
principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value including setting and approving the
Company’s strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and over all performance
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”). The
Board has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom
the directors also undertake, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board is made
up of nine members in total, with five executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors. During the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Liu Futao Chief executive officer
(resigned on 4 July 2022)

Mr. Ma Minghui

Mr. Wang Hao

Chief executive officer
(appointed on 4 July 2022)

Mr. Zhao Zhonggqiu

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Ms. Yang Qianwen (appointed on 18 April 2023)
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

BYEMITES
Independent Non-executive
Directors

4
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Executive Directors
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1 Director 4 Directors 3 Directors 1 Director
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2 Directors 3 Directors 4 Directors
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are
disclosed under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report. None of the members of the
Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of
the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship)
between members of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedures to nominate candidate as a Director. Pursuant
to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall
identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, after assessing a number of factors of a
candidate, including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience, commitment in respect of
available time and attention on relevant matters, independence
of proposed independent non-executive Directors and
diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final decision
in relation to the nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at general meetings of the Company. The Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend revision to the Board for consideration and
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board’s
composition at least once annually, and adhering to the Board
Diversity Policy when making recommendation on any Board
appointments.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that: 1)
the gender diversity at Board level can be improved; 2) this is
taken into consideration about any Board appointments; and
3) the Board has in place a diverse mix of skills, knowledge
and experience, and will increase gender diversity with the
appointment of one or two female members on the Board in
two years. Ms. Yang Qianwen was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 18 April 2023 and
will be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Following the appointment of Ms. Yang, the Board
has achieved gender diversity and thus fulfilled the requirement
under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2022, there were 2,121 male employees
and 390 female employees, representing approximately 84.5%
and 15.5% of the workforce (including senior management)
respectively. The Group targets to achieve at least 18.0% of
female employees by 2030 and expects a gradual reduction in
the number of the dimission of female employees.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such
mechanisms will be reviewed annually by the Board:

o At least one-third of the Board are independent non-
executive Directors in compliance with the Listing
Rules requirements, and the Company will assess
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors on at least an annual basis.

° The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new
independent non-executive Director before appointment
and the continued independence of the current long-
serving independent non-executive Directors on an
annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors
are required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm their independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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° All Directors are entitled to retain independent
professional advisors as and when it is required.

° All Directors are encouraged to express their views in
an open and candid manner during the Board/Board
committee meetings.

° The chairman of the Board will meet with the
independent non-executive Directors at least annually
without the presence of the executive Directors.

° A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has material interest in any contract or arrangement
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the
quorum on any Board resolution approving the same.

The Board would review the implementation and effectiveness
of the above mechanisms on an annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the
Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the
chief executive officer is Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate
persons in order to preserve independence and a balance
of views and judgments. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organizational structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service
contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three month’s written notice. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of 1-3 years and the appointment may be terminated
by not less than one months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any new Director appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders of the
Company at the first general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Wang Hao, Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok, Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond, Mr. Pang Chung Fai,
Benny and Ms. Yang Qianwen shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for reelection at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 6 June 2023 (the “2022
AGM”).

BOARD MEETINGS

Board practices and conduct of Board meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)
Board practices and conduct of Board meetings (continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including the Chief
Executive Officer, chief financial officer and company secretary,
attend all regular Board meetings and where necessary,
other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to the Directors for comment with in a reasonable time after
each meeting and final versions are open for the Directors’
inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

X RAERESTTRESTCREERMEA
IHE - TBRAEYE  HESAZAR
ARSI ER LI BERR - ML HRER
FRABRE - EFERBEEZTHARNLY
EREHBLIEBSRERE -

ZIS“*?E‘J‘%‘%&%“E% CBRETREAE - B
ﬁ*,ﬁ@%ﬁ NAME - HE2ITEHRITH

EFeed TANERKFHMWESRS
REEEEE  BARFNEBER - 8
BREFEE - ZEMEERTE  CEFT

AREMBRAEBREER

VARIWMEBEMEESZE SR
@l WRTFBMLE - B
egalEZEggRE RS
REIN —RE ﬁi%@ﬁagﬁaﬁﬁzm%
HERR  MERMAIHESER -

PN
%
£

13 e
A m =

o) m >

H‘

RARMABMERRARHFRXBRESR
BERMEESTHEARFOERGALIR
ﬁﬂPfiﬁ*ﬁEjﬁ%\ MR HM AR &%
MERE  RTEFANEEARK °



BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Directors’ attendance records

Corporate Governance Report

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings

and committee meetings being held during the year ended

31 December 2022 and the annual general meeting for the
financial year of 2021 held on 18 November 2022 (the “2021

AGM”) are set out below:

Name of Director

£34

Kang Baohua
REE
Liu Futao
(resigned on 4 July 2022)
A
(#2022 £7 A4 BEHE)
Ma Minghui
GHE
Wang Hao
2
Zhang Lei
K5
Zhao Zhongqiu
kit
Poon Chiu Kwok
&RE
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
HER
Pang Chung Fai, Benny
ZHE

Board

7

1/7

7

77

1

7

7

7

7

CRERBE

Exgel ()
ERHFEERLCE

HE2022F12A31BILFE §E =
ERESEEAREZEGERULERER
2022411 A18 A B MM 2021 FH I FE
BREAFAG (2021 EFRRAEAE]) K
EERHETINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/&EHA
Annual Chairman’s
Nomination Remuneration Audit General  Annual meetings
Committee Committee Committee Meeting with INEDs
TRH
BUFHTES
REZEE §MzEE ENZEES RRBEAE WEESS
2/2 11 11
2/2
11
11
11
11
2/2 /7 11 11
2/2 /7 11 11
212 212 /7 11 11
TRITTRER 22K v [ i A R 2y W)
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company would provide to each newly appointed
Director or alternative Director an induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of
a Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company
as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Group also provided briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills from time to time. Further, the Company continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follow:

EE3

EEANBRERAET ARABE
F2EFBEEXER UBRIUERSF
HB R - ARBBREBRHLIES
AR TEFREABMET  BHRERA
LTRAREFENBREREMLE  AREXEB
REMAREENEEREEEURAR
AIESIE - NFEREFTDEBREN EHR
AIREMREZRTHBRAREE - A%
BRETEN G REMIFIIRIE - ATE
BRNNEEFMB LG - 1 AR
ATERAESEH EMRAREMERRE
ZHRERFEMER - ARERETHE - A
IR EH RIFEREATAIHIRA

EENHE022FE12 A AIEELE
BB

Types of training

Directors 2= EIEE
Executive Directors HITES

Kang Baohua REE A,B,C,D,E
Liu Futao (resigned on 4 July 2022) BxgiE (R 2022F 7 B 4 BHEHT) B,C.D,E
Ma Minghui 5 B,D.E
Wang Hao = B,C,D,E
Zhao Zhongqjiu =R e B,C.D,E
Zhang Lei RE B,D,E
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFEHTES

Poon Chiu Kwok &R A,B,C,E
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond [iER A AB,CE
Pang Chung Fai, Benny TR AB,CE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Note:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)
B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate

development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)
D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

E. Directors E-Trainings in HKEx

F. Induction Training

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix
10”) and devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Company Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in
major Company matters, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Each Director
is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered in to by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has
the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management for the discharge of its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022
are setout in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
Such director’s remuneration was determined with reference
to the experience and duties of the Directors as well as the
Company’s remuneration policy and will be subject to review by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board from time to time.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC. The employees of overseas subsidiaries of the Group
participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
managed by the respective local government authorities. In
addition, certain qualified employees of overseas subsidiaries
also participate in defined benefit retirement plan. Details of the
Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 6(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

According to the retirement benefit schemes of the Group,
there is no applicable circumstance of forfeited contributions

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available on
the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely
Mr. Kang Bachua (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny and Ms. Yang Qianwen, the majority of which
are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) ExZse(®)

RELZES(E)

Nomination Committee (continued)

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - IRBEB

Committee: o

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination

reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
annually and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

made recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of Directors; and

made recommendations to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
professional experience, knowledge and length of
service.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee
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meetings was held during the year under review. ToRkeE®
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Zhao
Zhonggiu, Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny and Ms. Yang Qianwen,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level
of their remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their
written terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG
Code, the Remuneration Committee would make available
its terms of reference, explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

° conduct an annual review with reference to companies
with comparable business or scale and recommend
remuneration adjustments, if appropriate;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management
by band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its
performance as it may consider appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, the

remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

BEEZEE(H)

HMEES (E)
RIBEGEE AT ZFREXEEA 5K
BREEEKBNEE2022412A31H
IHFE 2 FNEES T

Number of individuals

In the band of FriBEiE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 11
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & & 2,000,000 % 7T 0

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr.
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny and Ms. Yang Qianwen, all of which are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control system and to provide advice and
comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 as well as significant
issues on financial control, internal control and risk
management systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for
2022, and received periodic updates on the status of
internal audit activities;

° reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year;

° discussed the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. This discussion included the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the
Company seven times without the presence of the executive
Directors.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has also adopted an information disclosure policy
which has set out guidelines in respect of handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board is entrusted
with the responsibility for monitoring and implementing the
procedural requirements in the information disclosure policy.
Release of inside information shall be approved by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company shall
not disseminate inside information relating to the Group to
any external parties and shall not respond to media report or
market speculation which may materially affect the trading price
or volume of the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company performing the corporate governance duties as
below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices

on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the
Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. An internal audit
department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The work carried out by the internal audit
department ensures the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.

Risk management framework

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, and reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis.

AN A ),
1E %@ﬁﬁﬁ%

BEMREX

ESHVBRROMBHEME

EERRFEANTHEERNQNFEE2022F
12 A31 BILFEMBRERMET -

EFREFRE L TRARA AT RE
BRE  HERRDHRE  ABEEA
SREBRBFEREATHT MR
ST -

ARBIEEECEREZTSRHEVENRE
RBE UEEESHREZFELNL
RAMBHREREL G -

b B & A SRR IR

REEFE EFEEEEZREEER
AARRBAMEEHENARE - EFE
BERFTRMY NARGH RMBHRE A
EMERLERAREFZIGE REER -
BRI AR EZBPIRNITE M B R EE
mE RARATAREMBRAETE
%o MEBEZEDPIA TIEMAR AT R
RIRETBIEIE R E]IT -

[\ B IR AE LR

EEgREAREENRREERAME
ZHIE - URERRRERRNAREE
VEZZ BEBFHEBRILETRG -

CERIDUREHR EROPEERER A

2

49



50

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Risk management framework (continued)

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The internal auditor and senior management
review and evaluate the control process, monitors any risk
factors on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee
on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Significant risks and control measures
Business risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers
or main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial
buildings, the business and prospects of the Group heavily
depend on the performance of the construction and real estate
industries, which are cyclical and could be significantly affected
by fluctuations in economic conditions.

The time and costs involved in completing construction can
be adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of
materials, equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions,
natural disasters, labour disputes with contractors and
subcontractors, accidents, changes in government priorities,
and other unforeseen problems or circumstances. The
occurrence of any of these factors could give rise to delays in
the completion of a project, which may result in cost overruns
and potential disputes and claims from service recipients.
This may also result in the profit derived from the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall system not being recognised in the year in which it was
originally anticipated to be recognised.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

ERERRABEEE (&)

[ E AR LR (48)

REEH A EBEIEHIE I ERET BB A K
Ko = R E L - e iR 7 s 1O A] 52
B TERARRER - #AREEE
ERR - UARREAEEEE - REZE
B & = A B HE B 7R it e e TG B R AR
Fro WERTARREE - AL I
EHER EBNSEZENRCEMRBRE

MEREZEZ B GRS °

ARBEARERMATZERGESHEE
BmIPERAREEREL BEMNRER - R
BEH B A BBRREEAEMIEBH AR

=
g °

ENE IRty

RERE

AEBRHBNEFPSNEERBIAHAE
BREAERENEERADYE  KANEBEE
BRASRAIZEE LEREEZENEMETT
ENRB - EXRBABBHE  ARZLH
RRBKENFE o

FEELIR B PSR VRS [ R BN RT BE X % TR
THRERE  BLRZBEME - R\
REBE IR - AFORRRA - BAK
T HAPBLOBEENSEMY B
W BN TESEHOESHREM AR
RFEESRIBER - BEERAERE - 159
FIREEEUIA R M TR - AT Sk G RS
B ARRBEZ T HBEM O RRE
ARRATEHFE AR AR E R - &
B AE HEMKESRBRBRNART
STV AT BE A e 1 SR T DARERR ©



Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Business risk (continued)

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges
from the changes in economy environment and policies, the
Company carries out in-depth study on the macro-economy
and policies all over the world to implement its strategies
to develop and strengthen penetration of different regional
markets thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

Industrial risk

The industry will remain polarized and extremely competitive;
leading towards the Matthew Effect of “the strong becomes
stronger” as the sector centralises and segregates. As the
market becomes more concentrated, market share will quickly

gravitate towards leading companies.

The Company has effectively coped with the impact of the
industrial risk, reduced variable costs and integrated fixed
assets. Meanwhile, the Company adhered to technological
innovation and obtained 9 utility models in 2022 which
empowered high-quality development of the Group in the
future.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.
Delay in supply of construction materials, unskilled construction
workers, safety accidents, natural disasters, adverse weather
and other factors may bring risks such as construction
progress, project cost, construction quality and customers
satisfaction, and thus affecting the results of operation and
reputation of the Company.

The Company has established various systems for
management of quality, progress, safety, material and cost of
project development to strengthen the overall management of
construction schedule, quality and safety, reduced construction
risks and emphasize safe development.

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range of
policies and regulations, including the company ordinance of
the region where it locates, financial and taxation regulations
and regulations in relation to construction and listing rules of
Hong Kong and mainland China etc., and the requirements
and changes of laws, regulations and policies may also affect
the Company. Due to the complexity of the construction
projects, the capability for claiming indemnity may directly
affect the profitability of a project. If the project team’s
experience in claims and counter claims is inadequate to meet
the requirements of the undertaken project, especially for the
overseas projects, if the Company fails to properly deal with
claims and counter claims in some construction projects where
the conditions are complex and the demand is high, especially
for the overseas projects, these will cause a negative impact on
the effectiveness and profitability of such projects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Compliance risk (continued)

The Company has designated special personnel to study new
regulations and policies and make relevant arrangements, and
reflected the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in
its business activities and operation management in a timely
manner. The Company also consults external experts for
handling compliance matters in order to comply with various
relevant regulations, policies and guidelines.

Credit risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with different
credit status, and its business development will inevitably be
affected by the varied credit profiles of these customers. Due
to the impact of the macroeconomic policy environment and
the COVID-19 epidemic, certain customers may suffer tight
cash flow leading to delays in payment or the increase of the
expected credit loss allowances recognised for financial and
contract assets. The Group seeks to reduce the aforesaid
impact by identifying and managing credit risks through internal
credit management measures, such as credit search, credit
rating, credit limit management, overall credit risk assessment
and stringent credit control against customers with faulty
payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks through
the purchase of credit insurance. The credit risk management of
the Group are set out in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the findings of investigations
on material internal control and the management’s feedback
thereof.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Financial risk (continued)

Based on the assessments made by the management and
taking into account the audit works of the independent
auditor, the Board and the Audit Committee considered that
no significant areas of concern in respect of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were identified during
the year of 2022.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems performed during the
year, the Board considers such systems effective and adequate.

Material risks relating to ESG

Please see the section headed “Impact of climate change” in
the ESG report dated 28 April 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external
company secretary service provider of the Company, has
been engaged by the Company as its company secretary
since 30 June 2012. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Wang Xiao, the secretary of the Finance and
Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the company
secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 76 to 86.

The audit fee incurred during the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB14.9 million. The external auditors
of the Company provided non-audit services with contract-
value of about RMBO0.6 million to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/
moving a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting):

o Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Office 11, 9/F, Fortune
Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

o The Requisition must state clearly the name of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed
to be included the details of the business(es) proposed
to be transacted in the extraordinary general meeting,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of
any outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to
convene an extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do
so in accordance with the memorandum and articles
of associations of the Company, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by
the Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes
only. The information does not represent and should not
be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the
Company to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their
own independent legal or other professional advice as to their
rights as shareholders of the Company. The Company disclaims
all liabilities for losses incurred by its shareholders in reliance
on any contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights”.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong by post through the following
means:

Telephone number: (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and
potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate
with the shareholders as follows:

(i). Corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form
and are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.yuandacn.com;

(if). Periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i),  Corporate information is made available on the

Company’s website;
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

(iv).  Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide
a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management; and

(v). The Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company
serves the shareholders in respect of share registration,
dividend payment and related matters.

The Board considers that its existing communication channels
with its shareholders and investors are effective in facilitating
ongoing communication and dialogue between shareholders
and the Company.

The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2022 will be held on 6 June
2023. The notice of 2022 AGM will be sent to shareholders of
the Company at least 21 clear business days before the 2022
AGM.

During the year, there was no change to the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions
that any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be
subject to the approval of our shareholders of the Company.
There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount will
be declared or distributed in any given year.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and outlook of the Company’s business, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and
important events affecting the Company occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report. An account of the
Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders is included
in the paragraph headed “Relationships with Employees,
Suppliers and Customers” of the Report of the Board of
Directors on page 63 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2022 using financial performance indicators is
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report and the
Group’s “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 236 of this
annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Company are provided in the ESG report dated 28 April 2023.
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EEEHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the
Group. The conscientious use of resources and adoption of
best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group
encourages environmental protection and complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the
laws of production safety and environmental protection for
enterprises. Since the PRC government is adopting laws on
strengthening environmental protection from time to time and
implementing stricter environmental protection standards,
it is expected that the Group will have to comply with more
regulations in the future. In addition, the Group predicts this
trend will continue and additional expenses may be incurred for
complying with new regulations, thus increasing the Group’s
operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only are we certified with ISO
14001 Environmental Management System, but we have
also set up an Environmental Division to monitor and manage
the environmental performance of our plants and maintain
communication with the Ministry of Environmental Protection.
In addition, the Group has been optimising its management
system for safety and environmental protection, regularly
keeping abreast of the relevant laws and regulations of
environmental protection in order to ensure full compliance with
local laws of environmental protection. Further details are set
forth in the ESG report dated 28 April 2023.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year
is set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and financial condition of the Company and the Group as at
that date are set out in the Financial Statements on pages 87
to 90.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June
2023 to Tuesday, 6 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during
which time no transfer of shares will be registered. To ensure
that the shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders must
deliver their duly stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited,
at Suite 1601,16/F., Central Tower 28 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May
2023 for registration of the relevant transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of
dividends to the shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company'’s Articles of Associations, and with the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividend may be declared and paid out
of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this propose. As at 31 December 2022,
the distributable reserves from share premium of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB574.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate to
the Group’s total purchase and the percentage of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
to the Group’s total revenue are less than 30%, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none
of the shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the
share capital of the Company possessed any interest in the
abovementioned suppliers and customers.
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Report of the Board of Directors

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its market
competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards and high quality products
to its customers. During the year under review, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
most suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)
Liu Futao (resigned on 4 July 2022)
Zhao Zhonggiu
(Chief executive officer appointed on 4 July 2022)
Ma Minghu
Wang Hao
Zhao Zhongqiu
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok

Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Yang Qianwen (appointed on 18 April 2023)

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are
set forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEHRE

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and
non-executive Directors of the Company are set out under the
section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors”
of the Corporate Governance Report. There was no service
contract entered by the Company and any Directors to be
reelected in the coming annual general meeting stipulating that
the Company may not terminate the appointment within one
year without compensation payment (other than the statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance with any
member of the Group as the contracting party and in which the
Directors of the Company possessed direct or indirect material
interests, and which was still valid on the year end date or any
time during the year and related to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no other contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which a controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the facility frame agreement on 2 January 2018
between the Company and the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Kang Baohua agreed
to provide financial assistance to the Company in a total
amount of not more than RMB700 million. Such advances had
no fixed term, unsecured, and bear interests at 4.28% for the
year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the
total outstanding amount under such advances amounted to
RMB216.0 million. As such financial assistance were being
carried out on normal commercial terms or better and were not
secured by the assets of the Group, such financial assistances
constitute exempt connected transactions under Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements; and none of these related
party transactions constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Qur Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best
Qutlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 61.25% of
the issued share capital in the Company as at 31 December
2022. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also
owns 100% interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore
is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well
as investment holding. Although the Company has established
a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain
wall contracting projects, the ability to contract for large scale
public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on
local contracting experience. Given the lack of direct local
contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating with
Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore during the last five years
and will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda
Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will
be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own.
Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda
Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-competition
(“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the controlling
shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of
the compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of
Non-competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company have also confirmed that all of them have abided
by the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they
had determined that the controlling shareholders have not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed
or might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he or she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.
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EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of the Company’s shares to
the employees, managerial staff and senior employees of the
Group and those other persons that the Board of Directors
considers that they will contribute or have contributed to the
Group (the “Participants”) as described in the Share Option
Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate
their contribution to the Group. The maximum number of
shares that may be issued under the Share Option Scheme
was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to 10% of the
issued capital of the Company after completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of shares
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of
the Company immediately after the completion of the Global
Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may
be granted to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than
those granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be
granted under the options to the independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective connected persons shall not
exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company from time
to time. There is no minimum period that the options must be
held before they become exercisable, and the options granted
shall be exercised within the period decided by the Board of
Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10 years
after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(€) nominal value of the Share.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time
the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have
been granted. The Share Option Scheme had expired on 11
April 2021.

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company, its
holding company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting
parties of any arrangements from which the Directors could
make a profit by purchasing the shares or debentures of the
Company or any other companies.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futons Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which would be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to Model Code, are as follows:
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS EERRG - HERORESFHNERR

IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND KB ()
DEBENTURES (continued)
(i), Interest in the Company (i). AN 0L
Approximate
Number Percentage
Name of Director Nature of Interest of Shares of Shareholding
EEnA EEME IR 13 8B REMAOB DL
Kang Baohua Beneficial owner 228,636,000(L) 3.68%
REE EmERA
Interest of controlled corporation  3,646,763,768(L) 58.74%
R EE N R
Liu Futao Beneficial owner 3,603,333(L) 0.06%
(resigned on 4 July 2022)
2= BEREAA
(R20224%F7 A4 HEF)
Ma Minghui Beneficial owner 0 0
A EREAA
Wang Hao Beneficial owner 150,000(L) 0.01%
T2 EmEAA
Zhao Zhongqiu Beneficial owner 0 0
B EmlAA
Zhang Lei Beneficial owner 3,000,000(L) 0.05%
RE BEREAA
Notes: Htat -
(1) The letter “L.” denotes long position in such securities. 1) FRLIRERZEEFLFNTE -
2) Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,597,531,923 @) REEELXEMFTEORSG

g EEARAAFESAR
2,597,531,923 & f& 15 - 1M #7 &l
AR A A A A 1,049,231,845
A - MRARAREES
E2BHER -

Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and
1,049,231,845 Shares were held by Neo Pioneer
Limited, both companies of which are wholly-owned by
Mr. Kang Baohua.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(if) Interest in associated corporations
Name of
Name of Director Associated Corporation
BEEHR HEEE A8
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
REE ERARAF
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REE MElER AR
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2022, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had an
interest and/or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:

Interest in the company

Name Capacity

=L -5

Best Outlook Limited™ Beneficial owner

FERBRAFO EnlEEA

Neo Pioneer Limited® Beneficial owner

HEIBR AR EmBEAA

Notes:

(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

(2) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Directors are not aware of any persons, other than a Director
or chief executives of the Company, had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31

December 2022 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of
independence issued by all the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has noted that as at 31 December 2022, Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok held directorships in eight listed companies
(including the Company). However, the Board is of the view
that Mr. Poon would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board. Mr. Poon as a FCPA (Aust.), Chartered Secretary, and
an experienced trainer to the securities participants and listed
company management keeping himself abreast of the latest
governance trends of the listed companies by attending seminar
and self-studying of related articles with over 100 hours in
2022 and has strong experience in corporate governance and
is familiar with management of Hong Kong listed companies.
During the year 2022, based on the attendance record in the
meetings of the Company, Mr. Poon has participated in all
Board meetings and has good communication with the Board
and other independent Directors and performs his obligations
and responsibility and gives impartial advice and suggestion as
an independent Director.

The Board of Directors was satisfied with the independent
status of all the independent non-executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering

and use of proceeds”under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in
the responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing
Rules regarding the provision of advances by the Company to
an entity.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
in the past five years is set out on page 236 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the
Articles of Association of the Company or the ordinance of
Cayman Islands, stipulating that any new shares shall be
offered according to the respective shareholding of the existing
shareholders of the Company when new shares are issued by
the Company.

TAX RELIEF
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief to which

shareholders of the Company are entitled by reason of their
holdings of the Company'’s securities.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Group maintained adequate public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITORS

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 20 December 2021 as KPMG and the Company could not
reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the annual
audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee,
has resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Hong Kong”) as the new auditor of the Company with effect
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

Afterwards Moore Hong Kong has resigned with effect from 17
June 2022 for the impact of the prevention and control policies
in response to the recent resurgence of COVID-19 epidemic
in both Hong Kong and mainland China on the Company’s
financial reporting and auditing procedures. The Company then
has approved the appointment of KPMG as the new auditor of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
with effect from 30 June 2022 and completed the renewal at
the Annual General Meeting held on 18 November 2022.

KPMG will retire and, being eligible offer themselves for
reappointment, for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of the

Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

28 April 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 235, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged
in the design, production and
installation of curtain wall systems
for commercial buildings and high-
end residential buildings. The Group
normally enters into construction
contracts with main contractors or
real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively
overtime using input method
based on the proportion of total
contract costs incurred at the
end of reporting period compared
to the estimated total budgeted
contract costs to complete the
contract when control of the goods
or service is transferred to the
customer.

The measurement of the revenue
therefore relies on estimations of
total budgeted contract costs.
Changes to estimated total
budgeted contract costs could give
rise to material variances in the
amount of revenue recognised.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of construction contract
revenue included the following:

* assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

e scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a sample
basis, and assessing whether these
key clauses had been appropriately
reflected in the estimation of total
budgeted contract costs applied in
revenue recognition;

e challenging the Group’s estimates
of budgeted costs to complete
the contract on a sample basis by
considering the Group’s historical
records of gross profit margins for
similar contracts;

* assessing whether costs incurred
were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing
costs incurred during the current
period to purchase invoices
and other relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i). (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the recognition of
construction contract revenue as a
key audit matter because there is a
high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in
estimating total budgeted contract
costs and the amount of revenue
to be recognised by the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our

audit

performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated
total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and the
agreed contract price;

performing site visits for the
selected major contracts in
progress, physically observing the
stage of completion of the contract
and discussing the status of the
contract with the site supervisor;
and

assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and

trade receivables

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and
trade receivables are mainly arising
from the Group’s construction
contract business. As at 31
December 2022, the aggregate
amount of contract assets and
trade receivables totalled RMB3.2
billion.

The Group measures loss
allowances on contract assets and
trade receivables for different group
of customers, with the assistance
of external specialist, at amounts
equal to lifetime expected credit
losses (the “ECL”) using provision
matrix which involved significant
management judgement, including
the determination of provision
rate for each age group/category
of contract assets and trade
receivables and an assessment
of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
ECL allowances for contract assets and
trade receivables included the following:

* assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control and
estimation of the ECL allowances;

e evaluating the Group’s policy for
estimating the ECL allowances with
reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standard;

e assessing the appropriateness of
management’s loss allowances by
examining the information used
by management to derive such
provision rates, and evaluating
whether the provision rates are
appropriately applied in the ECL
model;

e assessing whether items in the
ageing report were categorised
appropriately for contract assets
and trade receivables by comparing
a sample of individual items with
the underlying documentation;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and

trade receivables (continued)

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 28(a) to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

(continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the ECL allowances
for contract assets and trade
receivables as a key audit matter
because of the significant balances
at the end of the reporting period
and because the recognition of ECL
allowances is inherently subjective
and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

evaluating the independence,
competence and experience of
the external specialist engaged by
management;

involving our internal specialists
to evaluate the appropriateness
of model used by the external
specialist to estimate the ECL
allowances with references
to the prevailing accounting
standards and challenging the key
assumptions adopted; and

assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BB ERE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZEEERE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
SO ERER

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AARB(TARKE] BB #HZE2022F12 A31 BHIEFE

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat ARBT ARBETT

Revenue WA 4 3,263,601 3,055,262
Cost of sales SHE A (2,876,265) (2,629,465)
Gross profit EX 387,336 425,797
Other income HAn e A 5 25,467 50,788
Selling expenses HEEH (56,474) (71,949)
Administrative expenses THAX (371,116) (363,706)
Expected credit losses of financial SRR G R E & E M ERGK

and contract assets and ZTEEAEHER

other receivables (23,962) (879,704)
Loss from operations KEEE (38,749) (838,774)
Net finance costs BB AN ER 6(a) 147,354 (102,860)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BATAE (&) 6 108,605 (941,634)
Income tax FriS i 7 (36,476) (54,195)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFAE (BR) ToE

attributable to equity FARQATBRR

shareholders of the Company 72,129 (995,829)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF, (FHE)

(RMB cents) (AE%5)

— Basic and diluted — BEARREE 10 1.16 (16.04)

The notes on pages 95 to 235 form part of these financial FO5E23B B MFEALFMHEHRE 2 —
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders o o BIARARRRFAREFBEEHN
of the Company for the year are set out in Note 26(b). P 5E 26(0) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EffERRHEMEZERER

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBREN)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

[tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on

translation of financial
statements

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

The notes on pages 95 to 235 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20220F 12 A31 BILFE

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

FRFE (BR) 72,129 (995,829)
FERHEMEE R (BRB
REFIERRE) :
HEnSHorBERI85MER -
— R RRENE N EE

(212,664) 47,075
FRHE AR E RS

(212,664) 47,075
FAZHEREEE TS BT
P UNET): S

(140,535)  (948,754)

FO5FE 235 A ZMER/UFMHRER 2 —

o o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
& BF B B AR R 3R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2022
(AARBERERM) M2022512 431 H
2022 2021

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥TR AR¥ETTT

Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y 11 320,174 313,176
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 12 212,914 221,034
Investment properties "EYE 13 31,906 33,106
Deferred tax assets BELETIREE 24(b) 327,192 349,623
892,186 916,939
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract FEREMEREE
costs 15 310,865 432,070
Contract assets aREE 16(a) 1,616,958 1,580,502
Trade and bills receivables B 5 ek & e W R i 17 1,634,433 1,583,507
Deposits, prepayments and e BEERE
other receivables E fth FEIR 18 523,990 588,329
Restricted deposits SR Bl 5K 19(a) 701,144 1,394,784
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 19(a) 219,455 284,219
5,006,845 5,863,411
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables BIRNFRENRE 20 1,839,774 1,824,425
Contract liabilities aRAMRE 16(b) 495,830 514,899
Accrued expenses and FEET RIS SR B M FE S 3R
other payables 21 1,203,520 1,870,021
Bank loans RITER 22(a) 855,000 560,000
Income tax payable FESFR1S R 24(a) 254,427 241,356
Provision for warranties RIEHE 25 50,458 38,973
4,699,009 5,049,674
Net current assets REEETFE 307,836 813,737
Total assets less current liabilities BREE R AB A & 1,200,022 1,730,676
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

& Bt AR T 3R ()
(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2022
(AARBREBRL) RK2022F12HA31H

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank loans RITER
Lease liabilities HEaFE
Provision for warranties RIS

NET ASSETS FEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRKH#E
Share capital &N
Reserves fE

TOTAL EQUITY gL

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023.

Kang Baohua
BEEE
Director (Chairman)

EF(ZE)

The notes on pages 95 to 235 form part of these financial
statements.
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2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat ARBT ARETIT

22(b) - 390,000
23 1,932 2,553
25 186,627 186,125

188,559 578,678
1,011,463 1,151,998
26
519,723 519,723
491,740 632,275
1,011,463 1,151,998

BEEN2023F3 A31 B R IRRETEE o

Wang Hao
ES
Director

EZE



Balance at 1 January 2021

Changes in equity for 2021:

Loss for the year
Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

R2021E151R
pd 13

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOREEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2021 EvERET .

FRER
Efp2EkE

2EUELE

(Expressed in RMB)

Balance at 31 December 2021 #2021 127318

PA i

(AARBRERN) HZE2022F12 A31 BIEFE
Retained
PRC profits/
Share Share Qther statutory Exchange  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve osses) Total
REHE/
e R &fE AEE  REAERE ik  (ZER) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
(Note 26(c)  (Note 26(a)(i))  (Note 26(a)ii) ~ (Note 26(a)(iv))  (Note 26(d)(v))
(litzee) — (Witzeey)  (Wi2aayiy)  (WEtzeepy)  (FiEzeo)
519,728 574,047 55,786 435,901 (24,139) 530,434 2,100,752
- - - - - (995,829) (995,829)
- - - - 47,075 - 47,075
- - - - 47,075 (995,829) (948,754)
519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 22,936 (456,399) 1,151,998

ot
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

S EZETHR @

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBREN)

Balance at 1 January 2022

Changes in equity for 2022:

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2022 2022128318

1202251 A1R
2kt

N0E7ERET

ERHE
Efb2EkE

PEUELE

PAL

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE20220F 12 A31 BILFE

PRC
Share Share Other statutory Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s Rt Efifite  EEERE EX G ZitEE Azt
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETn  AR¥TR  ARMTn  ARETR  ARETn
(Note 26(c))  (Note 26(d)(i)  (Note 26(c)(ii})  (Note 26(a)(iv))  (Note 26(d)(v))
(W2ee) (o (Wzoemi)  (HE2emp) (W26
519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 22,936 (456,395) 1,151,998
- - - = = 72,129 72,129
- - - - (212,664) - (212,664)
- - - - (212,664) 72,129 (140,535)
519,728 574,047 55,786 435,901 (189,728) (384,266) 1,011,463

The notes on pages 95 to 235 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income
Borrowing costs
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
and other contract costs
(Increase)/decrease in contract
assets
(Increase)/decrease in trade and
bills receivables
Decrease in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Decrease in trade and bills payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in accrued
expenses and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in provision
for warranties

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Income tax refunded

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESRER

(Expressed in RMB)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
EHZE202205F 12 A1 HILFE

2021
RMB’000

ARETT

(941,634)

69,089
(22,966)
131,164
95,148

(16,358)

(59,175)
260,778
999,049
107,711

(347,608)

(51,616)

(88,757)

(580)

134,245

(4,509)
4,385

(AARMEBERL)
2022
Note RMB’000
Hat AR¥TR
REEE
BATFE, (E518) 108,605
FRRIFR
ITE K 5 6(c) 53,817
A2 U A 6(a) (21,634)
BB A 6(a) 107,682
SNE (Wias) /BI85 58 (187,074)
LEWE - BRE K&
MEE, (k) F5E 5 34
EEELRE)
FERHEME RRKA
A, (3 m) 122,573
AREE GEM) RS
(32,165)
B 5 RMR R EREE
(3gm) A (41,656)
e ARk EAMm
JFEE L Rk 31,164
B SRS R EREER D (74,222)
aRAaERD (19,069)
FEET 7 S R HAth FE A5 3R
g, CR) 19,296
RIEFE MBI, CRL)
13,173
REmBRS 80,524
EfTErEH 24(a) (4,788)
FrSHiiR 5K 24(a) 1,022
RETHFMSRESTFHE
76,758

134,121

1
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
EHBELSHRER @)

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AARBARBA) BE2022F12 831 BIEFE

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiokza AR®T T ARBTIT
Investing activities RETH
Payments for purchase of property, BEEWZ - WE RRENRK
plant and equipment (617) (9,104)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE « EK&E &
plant and equipment T b PR 2 PSR
and land use rights 19,658 46,461
Net payments for other time deposits £ 7 #i7F 70%F % - (3,000)
Interest received B U F 8 33,961 21,062

Net cash generated from investing & ZBFIBHE & /F5E

activities 53,002 55,419
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from new bank loans and #3888 1T & E b & FRATIE X

other borrowings 19(b) 2,364,198 2,404,824
Repayment of bank loans and BERITERREMER

other borrowings 19(b) (3,162,805) (2,696,082)
Net proceeds for restricted deposits #8777 E 7 Bl {5 Z K 1

to secure bank loans B9 PR ) 1417 5ROF FT1S 5K

and other borrowings 715,625 34,962
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEffHEEH S 2 B 19(b) (21,570) (28,951)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BNHEEM 2 F B35 19(b) (455) (597)
Borrowing costs paid EfHEERA 19(b) (98,842) (120,800)
Net cash used in financing BEEEFAESFE

activities (203,849) (406,644)
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEYNRDFHE

cash equivalents (74,089) (217,104)
Cash and cash equivalents MN1E1ENBEER

at 1 January HEZEY 19(a) 284,219 508,565
Effect of foreign exchange INEE RSB E

rate changes 9,325 (7,242)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31HHNEER

31 December HEZEY 19(a) 219,455 284,219

The notes on pages 95 to 235 form part of these financial FE23B BT ALEMERETZ —
statements. #h
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February
2010 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“lASs”)
and related Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”). These financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

1

BOFB BRI EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRHHEAIN - UARERE)
DREH

BRAFBEEZERAERAT(AQT])
R2010F2 A 26 BIRERSHE A
RIVAE22E (1961 F E 35 A2
KirE RIER]) TR S B S MK
R—RERRBREMELR - AR
AR D K201 E5 A17TH R & B
BHERZHBERAR (B £
e ARAEHYBRERBEFEAR
AIREMBAR(F#E [REH]) /D
Bl AEBWMEZ XL ARE

REE - £E - HERTEERZES -

EXREFHEE
@ AREH

It % B 5 R T IR AR P 8
R BIER M %S R (TH
MUMBEHRERED])  HEA
FRBEEER et ERES
2 ((BEREtEAEES )
78 A ) P 38 A M 1) B R B
BamEER - BERE G ER
(TERETER ) MAERE2
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CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2

-

-

95

a



L

96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for derivative financial instruments
and equity investment which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(e)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s
operation are conducted by the subsidiaries
of the Group in mainland China in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of RMB248,759,000,
while the Group had current liabilities of
RMB4,699,009,000 including bank loans within
one year or on demand of RMB855,000,000.

In this regard, the directors of the Company have
identified various initiatives to address the Group’s
liquidity needs, which include the following:

o The Group continues to improve its
operating cash flows by accelerating
the progress billings and collection of
trade receivables, actively participating
in bidding, negotiating with suppliers on
payment terms, and reduction of operation
expenses;

Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

o The Group continues the negotiations with
various banks to:

(i) renew the short-term bank loans
upon maturity (see Note 22(a)); and/
or

(i) provide additional bank facilities to
the Group.

° Mr. Kang Baohua (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) and a company under his
control have committed to provide the
necessary financial support, including but
not limited to: renewal of the borrowings
from Controlling shareholder and a
company under his control upon maturity
(see Note 21).

Based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
prepared by the management and assuming
success of the above measures, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

IAARE R EAL)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020
o Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

o Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment: Proceeds before intended
use

° Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current accounting period have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Any equity interests
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Derivative financial instruments and equity
investment

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

(continued)

©

Derivative financial instruments and equity

investment (continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Equity investment

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see Note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(j)(ii)). The depreciation policy is the
same as that of property, plant and equipment
(see Note 2(g)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in Note
2()(iv).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)(ii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see
Note 2(v)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the estimated useful life of
an asset and its residual value are reviewed
annually. No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Annual Report 2022

2

BEREHEE(E)

ERN G

1%IEE?$E’JL|51 EJZJ%TE?Z
EANEMSRIBFEMAE
BEREEZENERE TR
HEEsk & BB P g

N
o

FEDERBERER TG
=t A] R & ARt DA EH )
£ BERREEBEOKRA
WESFTRISEEA) -

1551 A& FHF A
B REF 304
Wezs N A 154
VRE R E AR 5%
W@% B MEEBIEE &
o R R ERFEAE - Al
%%IEH EOWLK@H?/—\ IR
DEEZ LD 2.5 78

DRTE - éfEE’MEa%T@E
REMEERSREERYAS
Frec ERIREZT IR
AIEBEE A AT - AR R
e -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development
activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(j)

(if))-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)
() As a lessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(t)(v)).
Any difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

(continued)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

(1)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is
not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured
pbased on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-
term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(t)(iv).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

(continued)

0)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash on
hand and in bank, trade receivables
and deposits and other receivables);
and

— contract assets as defined in IFRS
15 (see Note 2(1)).

Derivative financial instruments measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade
receivables, deposits and other
receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRSHBEK(E)
(continued)
0) Credit losses and impairment of assets 0] ERBEIREERE (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () T ITAREFEE
and contract assets (continued) 1=EAK (E)
Significant increases in credit risk EERE AR LA
(continued) (&)
In particular, the following information BEEmsE  FHEEE
is taken into account when assessing [B\ Bz B )56 7 58 LA 2K
whether credit risk has increased ERARBEAREE
significantly since initial recognition: BUATER :

— failure to make payments of

— KRERERZ

principal or interest on their HH BiZ A
contractually due dates; SHFE
— an actual or expected significant — S2@IAINE
deterioration in a financial 1= E A
instrument’s external or internal (BN E
credit rating (if available); PR TEHRFEE
2=k
— an actual or expected significant —  BEBALEXE
deterioration in the operating results BRI B TE
of the debtor; and m@EERlk:
e
— existing or forecast changes in the —  BE--mE-
technological, market, economic LESOERIR
or legal environment that have a iRE”JH IS
significant adverse effect on the & B B 75
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation /\Eﬂﬁi\ﬁ$
to the Group. EBEERRE
NEERTF
=7

2t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

(continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(1)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(t)(v) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

= significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

0 ERBERAREERE (&)

A TAREFEE
5B (&)

AHEN S A R ELE

1R & BT 22 2t)(v) #E 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BERSBER(E)
(continued)
0) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EREXAREERME (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () T ILAREREE
and contract assets (continued) 15154 (42)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRSHBEK(E)
(continued)
0) Credit losses and impairment of assets 0] ERIEXAREERME (&)
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) HE I & EmE
Internal and external sources of information REENFHEHAR
are reviewed at the end of each reporting FZ RN RN E R
period to identify indications that the R - LARETE LA R &E
following assets may be impaired or an ExdFEREDR
impairment loss previously recognised no R L ATRER AR
longer exists or may have decreased: EEEES T BEFRE

AT EAERD

- property, plant and equipment; — Y - HE&
=i
— right-of-use assets; — (FREEE:
— investment property; and —  HBEDE R
— investments in subsidiaries in the — KR A B AR
Company’s statement of financial TR A BT B
position. NEIEE o
If any such indication exists, the asset’s fisl (3R 1E {A] 5% & B
recoverable amount is estimated. 5 AlgdirEEN
AJUgE &8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I & BEBT S 3R T ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office
building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BERSBER(E)
(continued)
0) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EREXAREERME (&)
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) H I E) & A
(continued) (&
Calculation of recoverable amount FTEAKE S
o]
The recoverable amount of an BER A
asset is the greater of its fair value CRARAE
less costs of disposal and value B 3 & A A
in use. In assessing value in use, BH{F A EE
the estimated future cash flows MEENER S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHER - AR BEN)
BAREHBER ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)

(iD).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Inventories and other contract costs
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in
the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Inventories include the cost of raw
materials waiting to be assigned to specific
construction contracts. The cost of
inventories includes design costs, costs of
purchase, direct labour, other direct costs
and production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are assigned to specific
construction contracts, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the
related revenue is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

K

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(1)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the year the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(k)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs
of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are
expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when
incurred.

Annual Report 2022

2

BEREHEE(E)

(K)

FENEMERMKA (&)

()

(i)

7R (&)

EAMBRTFEER &
BRENEBNRAE
TR EETIRE h
MK EEBRNFE
AIERBF A
T B OB A (AT B )
SRTINERBE R
FENERSEHER
RAXHEESEN
FRL ©

H A R

Hib & RIK ARG
P& RMILE KA
SEITEFERBK
N EWEENEA
FE (RHEE20)()

HiS A A B EKA
BAEERBRGEP
BRIMESL - fMAREE
REARAMISEL
B AN (il 0 35 & 8K
ERE) - MABK

a5 B0 B AN 7 2 2R 2R e
SHIARRER - MK
BEIAT Y E - F A
FIH) G B AR E L
BEEAXL - MEA
[ B EL Al AN E
REMRIL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)
(ii) Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract
costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates
is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in Note 2(t).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
Note 2(1)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at
their transaction price. Trade receivables that
contain a significant financing component and
other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the
cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market.
The net consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “Shares held under share
award scheme” and deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the

distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(8)

Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(1)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected
to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised
for the reimbursement is limited to the
carrying amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(8)

Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts (continued)

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the
net cost of fulfilling the contract. The cost
of fulfilling the contract includes both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (continued)
() Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by
the Group as a construction contract when
the contract relates to work on curtain
wall under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be reasonably measured,
revenue from the contract is recognised
progressively over time using the cost-
to-cost method. Under the cost-to-cost
method, revenue is recognised based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs to
provide a faithful depiction of the transfer
of those services.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion
or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in
making these estimates, such that revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(1)

(i)

Construction contracts (continued)

The Group’s construction contracts
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the construction
period once milestones are reached. The
Group also typically agrees to a retention
period for certain of the contract value
which the Group’s entitlement to this final
payment is conditional on the Group’s
work satisfactorily passing inspection.
To the extent that the difference in timing
arises for reasons other than the provision
of finance, no financing component is
deemed to exist.

When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the
contract are estimated to exceed the
remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(s)(ii).

Service income
Service income from the rendering of

services is recognised when the related
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEIREIN  AARK EEA)

2  EASHEEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Sale of materials

Sale of materials is recognised when the
materials are delivered to the location
designated by the customer and the
control of the materials transferred to
the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue from sale of materials
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

v)

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Annual Report 2022

2

BEREHEE(E)

(®

WA R EABA ()

v)

(i)

FlLEHA

8 A 2 B 4
FEBFEERER -
e RMAERTED
H9R N KB 4T TRE
RRBERAEL B
& MR EEED
AEREF o

BFHEa,

i °] & H2 W E BE S
BT fERE - MAK
B 5 5 & BT 4 B P
B A e - RIBRAS 8
Bh 5 70 2 1 B A5 AR
KPR - EAK
B P E A R S R fERE
R E AR SR —HIfE
BRGHWRIBERT
HERSUWA - MEN
SEEEKANMH
Bh - EMHBEERE
B ME - HERZ%
BEMAERFHEA
WA ER 7
RIBEEAFER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities.

The results of operations which have a
functional currency other than RMB, the Group’s
presentation currency, are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale
if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset is
available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current assets
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRSHBEK(E)
(continued)
(x) Related parties x) AR T
(a) A person, or a close member of that @) MBIATAL  BIEZ
person’s family, is related to the Group if ATHZALTZER
that person: BR[| 5 A
() has control or joint control over the (i) P22 4l ok ££ R4
Group; HIAREE
(ii) has significant influence over the (ii) HAEEHFE
Group; or A7 S
(i) is a member of the key management (i BANEE A
personnel of the Group or the - TR SHNE I
Group’s parent. FBEEEK
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of () WA TG
the following conditions applies: - AEBEAEE
B A
0) The entity and the Group are () ZERBEAE
members of the same group (which BER—&%
means that each parent, subsidiary i A=\
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the others). ISS/NETIRNYEE!
NGIDSSE )
B ABEHEEE
) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

NARBERER)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(B=E A -

(continued)

(x)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Related parties (continued)

(o)

(continued)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Annual Report 2022

2

BEREHEE(E)

(x)

ki

)

73 (&)

(%)

(i)

(V)

(v

(viil)

MEEES S
R—%=7H

|
i
m EE Mt
af
SR
WM o> W

\

!

oE
kol
R
TR

I |1
IS &
el

i)
i

5| 9
e
N%Zﬂf
b
l
iy

=
TR

‘é“&%wﬁ
1B 8 FZ8e& ST
O B B A A 5T

gl -

- A
Fr s Bl A 42
il 3k 52 [R5
il o

=

12 (a)(i) Ffr 78 7l
ATHERE
BAFEN
Bz EE(K
EZ%’EE@EI’J!
AHEEE
B8 -

,D]]

}

I

B EMIE
REB -5
MR B 2 Al A
AEBEAEK
EIl:0ESoNEIES
HEBEEA
B A%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

3

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(i)

(ii

Revenue recognition

As explained in accounting policy Note 2(t),
revenue from construction contracts is recognised
over time. Such revenue and profit recognition on
incomplete projects is dependent on estimating
the total budgeted contract costs of the contract,
as well as the contract costs incurred to date.
The actual outcomes in the terms of total cost
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in the future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

Impairment of receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are
reviewed by management at the end of each
reporting period to determine the expected
credit losses. The management bases the
estimates on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and
current ability and willingness to pay, taking into
account the financial position of the customers
and the macroeconomic environment in which the
customers operate. The credit assessments also
consider the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any unresolved
lawsuits or contentious matters with customers.
If the financial conditions of the customers and/
or the macroeconomic environment of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to pay, additional impairment provision
would be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(i)

(iv)

Warranty provisions

As explained in Note 25, the Group makes
provisions under the warranties it gives on
construction of curtain wall systems contracts,
taking into account the Group’s recent claim
experience. As the curtain wall systems required
by customers become more complex, the actual
payment incurred for warranties provided may
be different from that estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect profit or loss
in future years.

Taxation

Determining tax provision involves judgement on
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
evaluates tax implication of transactions and tax
provision are set up accordingly. Where the final
tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the tax provision in
the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilised. In determining the
amount of deferred tax assets to be recognised,
significant judgement is required relating to the
timing and level of future taxable profits, after
taking into account future tax planning strategies.
The amount of deferred tax assets recognised at
future dates are adjusted if there are significant
changes from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

3

IAARE R EAL)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

v)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
land use rights may not be fully recoverable, these
assets are tested for impairment in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of non-
current assets and the recoverable amount of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and land
use rights was calculated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions related to fair
value assessment of the property, plant and
equipment and land use rights. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
design, procurement, production, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems. Further details
regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in Note 4(b).

() Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue represents contract revenue
derived from the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems. Disaggregation of revenue
from contracts with customers within the
scope of IFRS 15 by timing of revenue
recognition is as follows:

Over time R—EBRREA
Point in time 1A 35 A1 By P 2B

Disaggregation of revenue by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 4(b)(iii).

The Group’s customer base is diversified.
There was no customer with transactions
that exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

4 WA K 7 BB &
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() WA T

WA BRI R
REF - RE - £E
HEMZKELENE
FIMA = R IR A ATE
B ) 9 R R B 75 4
EAERZE 155K EE R
MREEFARZE
ADHEST

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETT

3,195,104 3,001,947
68,497 53,315

3,263,601 3,055,262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

4

IAARE R EAL)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
under the Group’s existing contracts is
RMB6,133.9 million (2021: RMB7,448.2
million). This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future
from construction contracts entered into by
the customers with the Group. The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in
future when or as the work is completed,
which is expected to occur over the next
48 months (2021: 48 months).

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated
amount of the expected transaction price
of the potential contracts (including tax) of
which the Group has won the bidding is
RMB4,986.6 million (2021: RMB5,205.3
million).

The above amounts do not include any
amounts of completion bonuses that the
Group may earn in the future by meeting
the conditions set out in the Group’s
construction contracts with customers,
unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the
conditions for earning those bonuses.

Annual Report 2022

4

WAR D B®RE (&)

()

WA (&)

(i)

BRI KA R
=P e Lok YoVl
SRHTLA -

20224 12 A 31
H: 2EERNEER
BERBETHTRELY
EAMNRSERLE
& A R %6,133.98
EL(2021F : AR
W7 4482 HETT) e
ZERBETEHAEG
HEFEARNEETY
WEEERERD
WA - REE R H
& TR ek R T sR T8
HA A+ TEERRS R 2R
48[ A M2 A4 (2021
F:48f@A) o

2022812 A31H -
AEEFRZENELEE
BEHTERRZ S ERE
(BREHE) AARKE
4,986.6 & & 7T (2021
F: AR #5,205.3

e —

BEJL) °

RSB REAE
BHEBBTAAE
BEEFEEARE
o R & 1R 44 T AT BE AR
EX#Y 5T T 22 B A (E ]
8 BRIFRIHRE R
IR SR B A R AT E)
B BRER % SRR ) 15
fF o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(o)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by

geographical locations of the construction

contracts in a manner consistent with the way

in which information is reported internally to the

Group’s most senior executive management

for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment. The Group has

presented the following two reportable segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to

form the following reportable segments.

(1)

Domestic: comprises construction
contracts carried out in the mainland
China.

Overseas: comprises construction
contracts carried out outside of the
mainland China.

Segment results

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment
result is “adjusted gross profit” (i.e. gross
profit after impairment losses for financial
assets and contract assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(B=E A -

4

(continued)

(0)

Segment reporting (continued)

(1)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Segment results (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to revenue generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments. No significant inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling
and administrative expenses, expected
credit losses for other receivables and net
finance costs, are not measured under
individual segments.

The Group’s most senior executive
management monitor the Group’s assets
and liabilities as a whole, accordingly, no
segment assets and liabilities information
is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAR D BB E (&)
(continued)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) )  DEHEE)

(i) Segment results (continued) () PDEFEAE ()
Information regarding the Group'’s #H F£2022F K 2021
reportable segments as provided to F12 A31BILEE -
the Group’s most senior executive EERHTAEER
management for the purposes of resource SITHREEABNUSY
allocation and assessment of segment it &R K 51 {h 7 Jh &
performance for the years ended 31 IR RS & @ 7] R #R
December 2022 and 2021 is set out ESE RSN o
below.

2022
Domestic Overseas Total
ER N SZN st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®MTR AR®TR

Revenue from external REIMBEFEH
customers and reportable PNk
segment revenue 2 EBUTA 1,471,880 1,791,721 3,263,601
Reportable segment EIEE: 8
adjusted gross profit KARER 237,412 124,178 361,590
2021
Domestic Overseas Total
A BEZ FEE

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTTE ARETET

Revenue from external REMBEFH
customers and reportable L ONSEL:E
segment revenue 2L A 1,460,851 1,594,411 3,055,262

Reportable segment adjusted T E ¥% 2 B
gross (loss)/profit KA
(E8) EF  (534,779) 112,736 (422,043) |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
AR EEERT)
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(B=E A -

4

(continued)

(o)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit

or loss

Reportable segment
adjusted gross
profit/(loss)

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Reversal/(provision) of
expected credit losses
of other and other
receivables

Net finance costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation

HAp A

HEER

1THRFX

Hofth bz HoAth B KA TR
ERBX
BE(BE)

BB AR

BAT A, (&E)
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2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETET

361,590  (422,043)
25,467 50,788
(56,474) (71,949)
(371,116)  (363,706)
1,784 (31,864)
147,354  (102,860)
108,605  (941,634)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Geographic information

The following tables set out information
about the geographical location of the
Group’s revenue from external customers.
The geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the
construction contracts are carried out.

Disaggregated by REFPHEGEEIS
geographical location
of customers

Mainland China B A 4B
United Kingdom F
Australia SEM

United States of America ZEF|ER & B
Others Hih

Vast majority of the Group’s non-current
assets are located in the mainland
China. As such, geographical analysis
of the Group’s non-current assets is not
presented.

WAR D BHE (42)
)  DEHEE)
(i)  HIEEF
TR B ERER

KB INEE P AW
A BPHHEUE
DRBETEEAR
B E] 7 o

2022 2021

RMB’000  RMB’'000
AR®TRE ARETET

1,471,880 1,460,851

781,332 621,740
408,892 151,001
118,462 224,047
483,035 597,623

1,791,721 1,594,411

3,263,601 3,055,262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

5 OTHER INCOME 5
Government grants 4B
Rental income from investment property $#&&¥% 2 & WA
Rental income from operating leases,  REMEBRINIKETHE
other than those relating to ZHEs WA

investment property

Fair value gain of investment in securities EHIEE KA EE WS

HWA

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT

Net income from provision of repairs IR HEE RRB IR HF A

and maintenance services
Net gain from sale of scrap materials SHE EEM B R W as
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE « BE & &XE

plant and equipment and land K 4 {56 FRHE Y
use rights F(E18) e

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

10,842 21,455
8,201 9,266
187 265
3,587 —
1,582 2,791
1,102 653
(34) 16,358
25,467 50,788




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 BATRE, (&R)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ FATFE,(E518) JhE3nk /(5T
(crediting): AN AT EIEEBE
(a) Net finance costs: a) BhE R AFEE ¢
2022 2021

Interest on borrowings (EECESA

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE (K52 19(0b))
(Note 19(b))

Bank charges and other finance $R1TFE&E & E M ghE A

costs
Total borrowing costs REEKAR
Interest income FBUA

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss  SME (U zs) /B8 %58
Net loss/(gain) on forward foreign & EiINE & 49
exchange contracts R, (=) F 8

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETRT

95,481 116,387

455 997

11,746 14,180

107,682 131,164
(21,634) (22,966)
(234,446) 61,697

1,044 (67,035)

(147,354) 102,860

R E 22022 F K 2021 F 12
A31 B IEFEWEEERAN
WERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& OB I R M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBERAIN  UAREFBLL)

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b) Staff costs*:

Salaries, wages and other
benefits

Contributions to defined M) T8 4 FUR REHEI 3k

contribution retirement plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at rates ranging from 14% to 16%
(2021: from 13% to 16%) of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based
on a percentage of the average salaries level in
the PRC, from the abovementioned retirement
schemes at their normal retirement age.

The employees of overseas subsidiaries of
the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the
respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the respective schemes at rates stipulated by the
relevant rules and regulations of the respective
jurisdictions.

In addition, certain qualified employees of
overseas subsidiaries also participate in defined
benefit retirement plan. The subsidiary’s payment
obligation in the future under such plan are
discounted and recognised as liabilities, deducted
by the related plan assets, presented in other
payables in the statement of financial position.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
406,223 422 222
33,609 27,564
439,832 449,786
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(o)

Staff costs*: (continued)

Contributions to these retirement plans vest
immediately. There are no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of distribution. The Group does not
have any further material obligations for payments
of other retirement benefits beyond the above
annual contributions.

Other items:

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBBEEBIN - AARERERL)
6  BIATAE (R (&)

(b) BTRA: (&)

% LR B RIBN
B o KEZARIRE AR EE
BB D IRKERL AR -
AEBBARE N EliF
EAEFIASNERE M E X
BIRBHEE -

(© HMIAR :

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Depreciation and amortisationt ~ T& &#H*
— owned property, plant — BEWE - BE K&
and equipment (Note 71) (HteE11) 25,729 27,905
— right-of-use assets (Note 12) — {FREEE (A1at12) 26,888 39,336
— investment properties — BB (Kt 13)

(Note 13) 1,200 1,848
Auditors’ remuneration % &0 Fl 2 B 14,948 10,576
Research and development I B A A #

costs* 72,867 89,171
Increase in provision for RIEEEEE M (B5E25)

warranties* (Note 25) 59,486 52,217
Cost of inventories* (Note 15(a) TFERA* (K15 15(a)) 2,876,265 2,629,465
& Cost of inventories includes RMB274.7 million # H=2022%12 A31H

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB301.8 million), relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses,
research and development costs and provision
for warranties, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

ILFE  FEXRABRE
BIRA - T8 REH
FsZ ~ B3 AR RARIE
BEEANKAARE
274.7 8 & Jr (2021 £ :
AR¥S018EBET)
i L 3t sk 7 B 7 6(0) &Y
SREMTAEBREEDN

R -
i
\
159

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
S Ot B 75 3R 3% B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEEBEIN  UAREE ABA)

7 INCOME TAX 7 Fris®t

(@)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit @  APHEERARNAEEE
or loss represents:

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Current tax (Note 24(a)): BVEAFR I8 (47 2F 24(a)) -
— provision for corporate — BRERAVAERREE
income tax in respective FrigHisE
jurisdictions 13,012 34,345
Deferred tax (Note 24(b)): EXERLIR (M 5E 24(b)) -
— origination and reversal — EREENES
of temporary differences JNEC el 23,464 19,850

36,476 54,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REERAIN  UAREFBLL)
INCOME TAX (continued) 7 FRe® (&)
(o)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (o) TIERXEZEANETE

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Expected tax on profit/(loss)
before taxation, calculated
at the rates applicable in
the jurisdictions concerned
(Notes (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv))

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income
Tax effect of utilisation of prior

years’ unused tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses

and deductible temporary
differences not recognised
Tax effect of reversal of
recognised deferred tax
Tax concessions and effect
of changes of tax rate
(Note (v))

Income tax

A1, (EH8)

AR R AR i A
B E R ATFE,
(E518) TaHAFL I8
(BIEE (), (i), (if) & (iv))

AR RS &

FEFERTUA R TR TS 72 2
R SCRIARRBTFE
ABABIEEE
B2
RERKRE AT IEEE
KA R R =5
ki
HRIECEHIEE ERE
BB E

BHERREHEEE o FE
(Baz W)
P aR

RMEEFIE (BE) %
BE :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

108,605  (941,634)
21,072  (233,538)
3,383 20,678
(18,345) —
(30,647) (29,053)
61,292 302,253
10,609 7,179
(10,888) (13,324)
36,476 54,195

2,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& O B 7 3R = M 5T o)
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
LAAREE BEAL)
INCOME TAX (continued)

(B=E A -

7

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(o)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Company and the subsidiaries of
the Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not
have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: RMBNIil).

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, respectively, are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax
rate of 256% for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated
in jurisdictions other than the PRC (including
Hong Kong), the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, are subject to income tax rates
ranging from 8.5% to 30% for the year ended
31 December 2022 pursuant to the rules and
regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2021: 8.5% to 30%).

Annual Report 2022
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#H =2022412A31 1
1 F /B2 16.5% (2021
F 1 16.5%) #) Bt X &
MEBEABNEH > BHRAR
REIRANEERE BT
1 A 2 A BT BB A B AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R BT 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(o)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

(vi)

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the
tax bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with
advanced and new technologies for the period
from the calendar years from 2020 to 2022 and
therefore enjoys a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: 15%). In addition, this
subsidiary is entitled to an additional 100%
tax deduction to its assessable profits (2021:
100%) in respect of the qualified research and
development costs incurred in the PRC.

Determining tax provision involves judgement on
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
evaluates tax implication of transactions and tax
provision are set up accordingly. Where the final
tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the tax provision in
the year in which such determination is made.

(Br=BIEHIN
7 Frig%t (&)

IAARME R EAL)

b) HEFXERERANERTE
RMEEFIE (BE) %
Bk (&)

)

(V)

SRR

AREBER—KRFEH
L E KB AR B ER
i 7% B #t fE B 20204F
2022 F W BEFEIE
Bim i B BT
I B B2022F12
A31HIFE=ZE15%
(20214 : 15%) W)
BEMESREBETE -
gEoh - ZHMBRAREE
BEZNRBEEENE
& I B B K AN 59 100%
(20214 : 100%) F& &%
BFDENEHNR &5 o

EEVAREY RS
TR SH) B 7% 5 IR {F H
HE - AEBEFERS
MR & WARRER
RITARME - HRER
2 W) R AR B 75 8 R A A])
FREWESEIR A
HERSTEEHER
FEREFERTIRRSE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section RIBEE R REHIZE 3831 E KA
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part AI(BEBRESHEER) ROIE =0
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about DWEMNESHESFFBLT :
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2022
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
E2 - 1 RIRGTE
E=He RENEHN (3 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARETR ARET R
Executive directors HITEZ
Mr. Kang Baohua REERE - - - -
Mr. Liu Futao AR EE
(resigned on 4 July 2022) (R2022F
7 A4 HEHE) - 358 15 373
Mr. Zhao Zhongqju BAMELE - 582 37 619
Mr. Ma Minghui SHELE - 463 37 500
Mr. Wang Hao FREAE - 186 18 204
Mr. Zhang Lei REFAE - 421 37 458
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ARRE LA 215 - - 215
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond BRREE 215 - - 215
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny ) i 215 - - 215
645 2,010 144 2,799
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Executive directors
Mr. Kang Baohua

Mr. Liu Futao

Mr. Zhao Zhongaiu
Mr. Ma Minghui

Mr. Wang Hao

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

HTES
REERLE
AEERLE
HRREE
SHBLE
FRE4E
RELE

BIUXHTES
RRELL

HEREE
YHhBEE

(REERAIN  UAREFBLL)
E=Me (&)
2021
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total

E =t RIKGTE
EEHE RENER {3 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AEEFT
- 853 33 886
— 719 33 752
— 536 33 569
- 346 33 379
= 950 33 983
208 - - 208
208 = = 208
208 = = 208
624 3,404 165 4,193

The emoluments of Mr. Kang Baohua were borne

by companies under the control of the Controlling

Shareholder during the year ended 31 December 2022

and 2021.

The emoluments of Mr. Wang Hao were borne by

companies under the control of the Controlling

Shareholder during the six months ended 1 July 2022 to

31 December 2022.

HE2022F %2021 F 12 A31 B 1k
FE BEELENTNRIZR
BRI SRR BRI o

H ZE2022F7 B1H ZE20224F 12
A31 BN AR R - ER2EER
327 B 42 PSS SRS A R B R HE o

?
B =
165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
(2021: none) of them are directors of the Company. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other five
(2021: five) individuals are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 ~ 285 & E W& AH|
Discretionary bonuses BISTEAL

Retirement scheme contributions RORET I

The emoluments of the five (2021: five) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

(In HK$) (%7T)

1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 Z 2,000,000
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 Z 2,500,000
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001 Z 3,000,000

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

REHMAL

AE&=SFHMMALTF - £ A (2021
F:E)EARREET - WA H
AL (20214 : %) BH4a%EN
™

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTR ARETT

5,981 5,447
2,272 3,339

853 1,433
9,106 10,219

F#(2021F - AR)&xEFMAL
EVE BN F AT EE -

2022 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

10 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 is calculated based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB72.1 million (2021: loss of
RMB995.8 million) and the weighted average
of 6,208,734,000 ordinary shares (2021:
6,208,734,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2022, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Weighted average number
DRI 88

of ordinary shares
at 31 December

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. Hence, the diluted earnings/(loss)
per share is the same as basic earnings/(loss) per
share.

W12 A 31 B E@mAk

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

10 SBRER(FH8E)

(@)

FREARRF, (BE)

HZE2022F12 A31 H IEF
EEREARRFIBEARA T
RERELFIBEARE721H
B (20214F : BHEARE
995.8 H&E L) R BIE 2022
F12A31HIEFEB BT
hn # F 5 $16,208,734,000
g & @ (20214 :
6,208,734,000 % & 38 B% ) &t
BT -

ZIER NRET T E
2022 2021
No. of No. of
shares shares
’000 ’000
T T
6,208,734 6,208,734

FhEERN, (F8)

B E 2022 F K 2021 F 12
A3 BIEFEEABTE
SERE R AR D BEATIESN ©
It SREERN, (&)
HERERBF(EE)IE
ﬁ °

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERRE
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and and other
buildings equipment equipment Total
RER
BERETF BRRRME Hithi s @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 m2021%51A18 410,247 382,762 163,493 956,502
Exchange adjustments BN AR 276 (184) (1,795) (1,703)
Additions NE 9,585 85 551 10,221
Disposals HeE (31,611) (1,979) (6,453) (40,043)
At 31 December 2021 and 202112 A31RH
1 January 2022 %2022%1R18 388,497 380,684 155,796 924,977
Exchange adjustments B 5 55 2 414 80 1,349 1,843
Additions NE 51,379 274 486 52,139
Disposals e (20,894) (3,451) (4,627) (28,972)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H 419,396 377,587 153,004 949,987
Accumulated depreciation: 25HE
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1R (163,042) (289,863) (146,886) (599,791)
Exchange adjustments i 5t 263 121 1,731 2,115
Charge for the year FANE (10,126) (16,032) (1,747) (27,905)
Written back on disposals SR E 7,533 1,401 4,846 13,780
At 31 December 2021 and 2021612 A31 8
1 January 2022 &2022%F1A1H (165,372) (304,373 (142,056) (611,801)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3% (139) (69) (1,355) (1,563)
Charge for the year FRFE (9,074) (14,344) 2,311) (25,729)
Written back on disposals HEED 2,133 2,957 4,190 9,280
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12 A31H (172,452) (315,829 (141,532 (629,813)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 A31H 246,944 61,758 11,472 320,174
At 31 December 2021 R 2021 F12 A31H 223,125 76,311 13,740 313,176

At 31 December 2022, property certificates of certain

properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB55.5
million (31 December 2021: RMB56.7 million) are yet to

be obtained.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-

of-use assets, carried at depreciated cost, by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

Cost:

At 1 January 2021
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Expiration of lease terms
Disposals

At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Expiration of lease terms

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2021
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Expiration of lease terms
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Expiration of lease terms

At 31 December 2022

Net book value:
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

B
R2021%1A1H
B 57 2

RE

HEHH

&

R2021%12 A31H
%2022%1A1H

B 5 59 %

ANE

HEE®

2022612 A31H

EHE
R2021%E1 A 18
B 5 55 2
FRME
AERm
HERE

2021 €12 A31H
%2022 1A1H

[ 5 25

FAME

HEHR

202212 A31H

IREEE
2022 %12 A31H

72021 €12 A31H

(BB AR - AARBAER)
12 EAEEE
REBRENEERNCAEEE
HRREDFE (T EKARTIR) 2T
I
Motor
Prepayment vehicles and
for land use Properties equipment
right for leased leased
own use for own use for own use Total
BAt# BREE
FREEMGYR BRAREN% EHRHRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AR®FT
Note (i) Note (i)
HizE() iz (i)
289,002 31,795 713 321,510
— (1,510) — (1,510)
— 27,431 — 27,431
— (39,246) (713) (39,959
(5,917 — — (5,917)
283,085 18,470 — 301,555
— 724 — 724
— 18,730 — 18,730
— (20,758) — (20,758)
_____ 283085 166 = 30251
(65,298) (17,839 (635) (83,772)
— 551 - 551
(5,833) (33,425) (78) (39,336)
— 39,246 713 39,959
2,077 - - 2,077
(69,054) (11,467) — (80,521)
— (686) — (686)
(5,836) (21,052) — (26,888)
— 20,758 — 20,758
s esn S L0
208,195 4,719 — 212,914
214,031 7,003 - 221,034 [

. J
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

12

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Prepayment for land use right for own use represented
land use right premiums paid by the Group for land
situated in the PRC. The remaining lease terms falls
within the ranges of 35 years to 44 years. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these land use
rights, and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease.

(i) The Group has obtained the right to use the properties
as its production plant or offices or dormitory for staff
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 8 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. If the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. For
existing leases as 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022, the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
any extension options therefore did not include future
lease payments during the extension periods in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group do not have leases which contains variable
lease payment.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a))

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

ERREENE

HEREFNE (HiE6()

EREEE(Z)
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BFE4F 2 o —IRMETER
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f<T8) - T BARER + AR S5
REHEITHREK ©

(i AEFEDEBHERAESME
R EREEETREIMRL
ERBIES - HEH KRB
£8%F -

ELHEREEARBERRZEH
AIER—ERRF AR IERE o 1E0] 1T
MIBRT + AEBOKWAREE
AJAT{E AT B - IR REEE
EE o AEBREERS BTG
EEAAEICETFEARERE -
MRAEETRAEREREGITIE
FEARER R - AEE AR AR 2R TE
ENFTEREHEAEBENTE
i oo ¥ E = 20215 12 A 31 B
2022 12 AT HWBABEHE - K
ERELAEEESGITELMIE
HEEE AREHEAESETR
KRG EER BRI R R A ES R EIE
A o

AEEREESAEEENTNHA

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTRT

26,888 39,336
455 597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(c)
and 23, respectively. There is no lease that is not yet

commenced as at 31 December 2022.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Cost:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2022

Net book value:
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

(B BN -
12 ERAEEEE)

RARFBNEE

13 REWHE

R
R2021FE1H1H 20216128318 -
202241 A1 HK&2022912 A31H

Rty .
R2021%1 A1H
F N EEH

R2021 12 A31 B & 202241 A1 H
F N

R2022% 12 A31H

BREFE -
7R2022F 12 A 31 H

M2021%F12 A31 H

IAARME R EAL)

HERe AL EBERHAEEENE
BT IE D B3 E A M FE 19(c) &
23 HE2021F12A31H ' 8AF

RMB’000
ARBETT

47,926

(12,972)
(1,848)

(14,820)
(1,200)

31,906

33,106

F
i
B =
14740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note:

(i) The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 6 to 8 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year —FRA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA
After 5 years hEE

(i) The investment properties owned by the Group are
situated in the PRC. The fair value under income
approach of the investment property at 31 December
2022 is RMB102.6 million (31 December 2021:
RMB103.7 million).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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REMEE (&)

Haz -

)

AEEUGERE TR HRRE
MEE - AEHAEA6ES
G AHEIR BRI SRR
RS EERE - HENKE
BEERN—R - ARBATISHE
4 - FERELTRETSHEE
3k -

75 5= B 7 S 3 H0 i S KBRS AT 4
HEEHENAENRERSH
HIT R ARREIRE - A0 NATR ¢

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT

10,418 10,190
37,904 41,479

- 6,843
48,322 58,512

(i)

REEHA IR EYEERMR R
o FARE W FEAE2022F 12 A
BINENAARBEREZETAA
R#102.6 B& T (202112 A
318 : ARB103.7EETT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group.

Name of subsidiary

i} PEE

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Enginesring Co., Ltd.
(‘Shenyang Yuanda’)

AREARETEARAT
([EREX)

Yuanda (UK) Co., Lid.
EAZAARA

Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd.
ERRANZERAA

Yuanda USA Gorporation
EAFERRLA

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering (india)
Private Limited (*Yuanda India’)

EARRIE(IE)UARRLT
(FEAHE])

Yuanda Europe Ltd.
EAENARA

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and business
RY/EmAY
RERHE

The PRC
&

United Kingdom

S

Australia
2

United States of America

g2

Republic of India ‘India’)
IR A)

Swiss Confederation
A

Particulars of
registered/
issued and

paid-up capital
ith/c&fR
BRRAHE

United States Dollar (‘USD’)
303298200
32328 005 70([ %7 )

500,000 shares
500,000%

14,020,000 shares
14,020,000

10,000 shares
10,000k

2,858,340 shares
2,898 3401k

1,000,000 shares
1,000000%

14

Proportion of ownership interest

The
Group's
effective
interest
FEEZ
RREL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

LLL

Held

by the
Company
HARE
BR

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE

Held by
subsidiaries
HAE
AikE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

(BRRHHEAIN - UARERE)
RBARZRE

TRENHHARENEE  BE
SRBEAEATEZHBRRER -

Principal
activities

IEER

Design, procurement, production, sale and
nstallation of curtain wall systems

wif 5% LR BERZERRAR

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and

installation of curtain wall systems
it B HERERERZD

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and

installation of curtain wall systems
it A% BERERERZN

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems

w58 AR BERLRERAR

Design, procurement, assemby, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems

w B8R HERRRREAL

Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems

it B8 AR BERZEERAR

ot,

| 1S

L i




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(s BAE1EEESN - UAARBEBEN)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 REBARIZERE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

HEREHN
Place of Particulars of The
establishment/ registered/  Group’s Held
incorporation issuedand effective  bythe Held by Principal
Name of subsidiary and business paid-up capital interest  Company  subsidiaries activities
Al/dRAT ift/c&fR  AEEZ  pALF HHE
WEARAR REZHE BRRAdE EBEE 0 KR D3NA TEER
PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Repubic of Indonesia 160,000 shares 99% = 9% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
Indusiry Engineering DEfeRLEAE 150,000% instalation of curtan wallsystems
EAEZTRARARA it Rl A% BERTERRAD
Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd. Australia 800,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
FARTHARAA i 800,000 instalation of curtan wallsystems
it R HERERERAR
Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd. Australia 1 share 100% = 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EAESHERRAA bl 1% instalation of curtan wallsystems
wt R BR HERTRREAR
* This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise * A R AR B MK S H SN
established in the mainland China. BEMRE -
The equity interests of certain immaterial subsidiaries ETIHERMBRARINEZRBE M
were held on trust by local individuals on behalf of the AT AMEFERNEARREERFE -

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
G O B 75 3R 3R B 5 o)
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEREIN « UAREE ABA)
INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 15 RBFEREMERRAK

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARETET

Raw materials R 295,321 252,712
Work in progress & 20,450 183,736
Less: write down of inventories B R E MR (4,906) (4,378)

310,865 432,070

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are BSERMNEERAESEELS
recognised in “selling expenses” in the statement of ARERXTNHEER ] hiE
profit or loss in the period in which the amounts were R HSEITEE -

incurred as the amount is not significant.

(a)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (a) RERAERERIZLFTAE
recognised as an expense and included in the FHEERANGEESEIN
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the LU

year is as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories ~ ARZEARMFEEEE
used in construction contracts 2,875,676 2,629,465
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 589 —

2,876,265 2,629,465

2t

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE 175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

IAARE R EAL)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(@)

Contract assets

Contract assets AREE

Arising from performance under EEA R TEAEE

construction contracts

B BREE

Less: loss allowance

All of the amounts are expected to be billed within
one year from the end of the reporting period,
except for the amounts of RMB107.5 million at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB145.9
million) related to retentions receivable (net of loss
allowance) which are expected to be recovered
over one year.

Included in the contract assets are amounts
of RMBO0.8 million at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB0.6 million) due from the
companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

The Group’s construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage payments
over the construction period once milestones are
reached, these payment schedules prevent the
build-up of significant contract assets. The Group
typically agrees to a one to five years retention
period after the completion of construction
contracts, depending on the market practice in
the countries where construction contracts are
carried out and credit assessment performed by
management on an individual customer basis.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

EREERERARE

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETET

2,445,823 2,363,737
(828,865) (783,235)

1,616,958 1,680,502

Fi B IR TR EAPA ¥ 5 HATE —
F AR RS R20224F
12 A31 HEEWRERSE (3
BREIERE) iR S FETERT
BARE107.5BEIT (2021
F12831H: AR¥1459
BET) BHR—FUEK
@ o

R2022F 12 H31H + fE I
2 IR AR B i R A Bl Y IR
AR®08H 8 t(2021F
12A318: AR¥06B &
T ETAEREE o

AEERESRBEREY
A 225K 7 B B SR 9 50 A
B(—BERER)  WEN
RERMLEREAEGRE
E - ATHRRZEERME
BRHEEXTSENLE
EEREBEFPEELETH
FEHE AREBRERE
REKRESRRAE—=
hFRRER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(@)

Contract assets (continued)

The amount of revenue recognised during the
year from performance obligations satisfied (or
partially satisfied) in previous periods is RMB28.0
million (2021: RMB162.1 million), mainly due
to the changes in estimate of the stage of
completion of certain construction contracts and
approved contract modifications.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities EREE
Construction contracts BEAR
— Billings in advance — BARIFL RS

of performance

Included in contract liabilities are amounts
of RMB2.3 million at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB2.3 million) due to the
companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
construction activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

16 AREERGRERE (&)

AREE(E)

FRFR B E AR ER (k50
DENK) BAREEREU
ASTEAEARK280H5ETT
(20215 : AR 162185
L) EEZHRETEEER
RAEHEES RS ET 5T

TREBEREHSATE -
aRA/E
2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
495,830 514,899

R2022%F 12 A31H +
PERR AR R ) T A R A 58
AR ®23H 8 (20215
12HA318 : AR%23B &
T FFARRALE -

FIBEARAEEIN—FA
RN -

475 5 R R SR OE BRI A BT
WEIRS - Bl ERARRE
yéﬁ%giéﬁE\{E , Eﬁ?jﬁ
TE B BRI ARBILES S
4 o

2t

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2

14

L Pl



L
I

178

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Br B EIIAIN » UARESEN)
16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16 EEEEREGEAEE (E)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b)  Contract liabilities (continued) by ARAEGE)
Movements in contract liabilities SEABHNES
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETRT

Balance at 1 January M1 A1 Bz 514,899 566,515
Decrease in contract liabilities FREERBRAEER

as a result of recognising sRAE(FIFAERAR)

revenue during the year that W

was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning

of the year (244,046) (332,511)
Increase in contract liabilities as R ENFT H BB &

a result of billing and receipt FAWFIBEERE R

in advance of construction BEEm

activities 224,977 280,895
Balance at 31 December M®12 A31 B Z & 495,830 514,899

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables for contract work
due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder

Bills receivable for contract work

Trade receivables for sale of raw
materials due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder

Less: loss allowance

Financial assets measured
at amortised cost

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

17

BRIEEZEUK

e —

— F=F

— RERBRZESIE A F

BRIERERE

HEMHE ZRUK -

—%=7

=

(BRRBIEAIN  AARBRER)

B 5B R ERER
2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’'000
AR®TR ARETET
3,249,339 3,230,692
179,560 164,061
3,428,899 3,394,753

— RERBRESIE A F]

W EE

REHRAGTENEREE

At 31 December 2022, the amount of retentions

receivable from customers included in trade and bills

receivables (net of loss allowance) is RMB398.9 million

(31 December 2021: RMB472.8 million).

Except for retentions receivable (net of loss allowance)
of RMB87.2 million at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: RMB147.3 million), all of the remaining trade and
bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one

year.

4,446 5,405
1,701 1,720
_____________ ey e
3,550,761 3,508,981
(1,916,328) (1,925,474)
1,634,433 1,583,507

M2022%F 12 A31 H » EREF {#
B (HkrEERE) A ARE308.9
BET(20215E12 A31 3 : ARK

s

4728 EBEBTT) °

Bri2022 12 A31 H AR ¥87.2
BEL(2021F12A31 8 : ARE
147.3 B B7T) WEKIRE & (FIBRE
BREE) I HBMBEE S REH K
FEREIRTEAN —FAULE -

2t

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 year —FRN
More than 1 year HEiE—F

The Group generally requires customers to settle
progress billings and retentions receivable in accordance
with contracted terms. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors
and bills receivable are set out in Note 28(a).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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EZRUREERRE (&)

R

5
5
=

HERESHER  BIERFEER
i‘%%ﬁ(% BrEIEEE) BEEHHN
BROMTT ¢

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTET

241,984 330,095
1,392,449 1,253,412

1,634,433 1,583,507

REBRATEEREPBES LGN
HREEERERERRES - BH
AN £ B {2 BB SR DA B 8 LA BR TR K e
WEEELNEERRNE —PF
B KIEE 28(a) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments for purchase of
inventories (Note (i)

Prepayment for miscellaneous taxes

Deposits for construction contracts’
bidding and performance (Note (i)

Deposits for purchase of forward
aluminium contracts

Other deposits

Interest receivable from time deposit

Investment in securities

Derivative financial instruments
— other derivatives

Amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder and the companies
under his control (Note (i)

Government grants receivable

Others

Less: loss allowance

Notes:

(i) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.7
million at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
RMB3.6 million) made to the companies under the
control of the Controlling Shareholder.

(i) The balance represented deposits placed with
customers for contracts’ bidding and performance of
contracts in progress. The deposits will be released to
the Group upon the completion of the related bidding or
contract work, where applicable.

(iif) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

(BBEHEBIN - AARE SERL)
& - BARREMERR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT
BEFEREMNK
(B1&E @) 314,897 304,357
MR T R 35,637 44,129
BEARKENBHES
(K7 (i) 130,584 144,084
EERARESVEE
112 1,123
E it e 30,217 45,901
TE Bi1F 3 F B A 7,087 19,414
BHEE 9,682 =
PTESMITA
— HMfTET A 9,549 54,514
EW%&&%&%%%%
B B FRIE (B 22 (i)
6,897 5,760
JE U BT 4 B 710 4,586
Eh 43,954 31,581
589,326 655,449
e k= b (65,336) (67,120)
523,990 588,329
Bist
(i) ZAERRBIEN 2022412 A31 H
ARBI7HEL(2021F12 A
31H: ARKISEEL) WA
PR AR BRI B A BIEH TR
3R o
(i) EERERE RS RNE RRE
REABEE X MRS - Z
ZRS BN ERIRER SR IZ
(AER) LB mAEE o
(i) REFIE REEA - 28 BERE
B o

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for the deposits for construction contracts’ performance
and the amounts of RMB1.7 million at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: RMB5.4 million), all of the remaining
deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

iR 2022 F 12 A31 HMEEA RIEL)
Ee ARE1.7E8EL(2021F12 A 31
B: ARBSAEBT) I HtpFraR |
& BNRRAGERKBERER—F |

MR EIRFER R

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2 18

-ME




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
19 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 19

EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

& OB I R M ()
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(@) Cash on hand and in bank comprise:

Cash and cash equivalents EHEERERTHNIRE
in the consolidated cash MIE©EEY
flow statement

Restricted deposits with bank 2R H M RITER (ATaE)

(Note)
Frozen bank deposits REEIRITIE X

Total cash on hand and in bank  FEEIR & RIRTTIF N 4E%E

Note: HieE -
Restricted deposits comprise IR HI T R B IE
— restricted deposits to secure — EREESRRBARRE S
the performance and retentions AR B PR HIl 77 5%
of construction contracts
— restricted deposits to secure — BRRITEEREERD
bank bills PR 5 14 15 3K
— restricted time deposits to — tEARITERRMEER
secure the bank bills PR I 14 E BB F 30
— restricted deposits for issuance  — EABIS(E A RIPR HI1E
of letter of credit TR
— restricted time deposits for — 1ERFNEAE AR HIME
issuance of letter of credit TE B
— other time deposits with original ~ — E b #1417 HAA B 3 18 A
maturity of over 3 months HYER1TE HATE X

The Group’s business operations in mainland
China are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of mainland China is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

182 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

REMER  RERREEEY
REMRERER

FHRRE NBITHERELE -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

219,455 284,219

644,699 1,375,903
56,445 18,881

701,144 1,394,784

920,599 1,679,003

162,284 177,863
15,365 365,040
280,000 380,000
174,050 350,000
10,000 100,000
3,000 3,000

644,699 1,375,903

ANEBE BB R EIAA
REFE - AREIATH
HEBHNER BHPBEA
& & X H BT E &Y
HINGE B Il FT AR PR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(0)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

At1 January 2022

Changes from financing cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans and
offer borrowings

Repayment of bank loans and other
borrowings

Capttal element of ease rentals peld

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Borrowing costs paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Increase in lease liabilties from entering
into new leases during the year

Exchange adjusiments

Total borrowing costs

Total other changes

At 31 December 2022

R2E1A18

HERERERY:

MERTRAESHE;

S

EERTRRRALET
EfEERE AR

EfEEREHEED
ENfERA

L R

RERERIRENER
AR

Ei#g

fRERAEE

EftRa4E

RO2E12A%1A

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R BAEEBAIN - UARKERER)
19 REMER BERRESEEY
REMAERER (&)

b REERBELANEBEIHK

Amounts
due to the
Controlling
Shareholder
and the
companies Amounts Discounted
under his due to Lease bills and Interest
Bank loans control  third parties liabilities  credit letters payable Total
ERERRR
REESGN  ENEZH BRZER
RER AEZEE b HERE ERE EfRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTRZ  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 22) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)
iz (Hitzy 2y (29 2y iz
950,000 17,144 147,609 1128 1,202,215 7,012 2,471,108
620,000 1,139,461 196,637 - 408,100 - 2,364,198
(715,000 (1,097,981) (147,609) - (1,202,215) - (3,162,805)
- - - (21,570) - - (21,570)
- - - (455) - - (45)
- - - - - (98,842) (98,842)
(95,000) 41,480 49,028 (22,005) (794,118) (98,842) (919,474)
- - - 18730 - - 18,730
- 11315 - 184 - - 11,499
- 7,800 - 455 - 99,422 107,682
- 19120 - 19,369 - 99,422 187,911
855,000 217,744 196,637 4472 408,100 1,59 1,689,545

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE

?
B =
183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

19 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 19 REIMEFER RERRLEEY
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW REMBEESFTER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (o) BEEEEENAE L HR
activities (continued) (#&)
Amounts
due to the
Controlling
Shareholder
and the
companies Amounts Discounted
under his dueto Lease bills and Interest
Bank loans control  third parties liabilities ~credit letters payable Total
ERERER
REERGN  ENEZH ERRER
BOER MEZR bV HEER R EAE it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR AR ARETR  ARETR
(Note 22) (Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)

7] (2 (2 (W29 (k&2 (k&2
At1 January 2021 R E1A18 1,009,200 181,220 108,182 9,541 1,406,800 1241 2,762,184

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ H&%$HESE:

Proceeds from new bank loans and other - FEBTREREEES

borrowings 550,000 505,000 147,609 - 1,202,215 - 2,404,804
Repayment of bank loans and other EEROER RS

borowings B0 deg (10818 - (idmen S e
Capita element of lease rentals paid BfifiERe a580 - - - (28,951) - - (28,951)
Interest element ofease rentals paid BfifiERezfls8n - - - (397) - - (597)
Borrowing costs paid B ERA - - - - - (120,800) (120,800)

HEEEE (149,200) 23,100 041 (20,548) (204,585 (120,800) (441,606)

Total changes fom financing cash flows ~~ BER 272
Other changes: ie:

Increase n lease liabiites from entering into - A AFT TR EHTE

new leases during the year BEMEN = = = 97431 = = 77431
Exchangg adjusiments ERAR = [1.172) = 893) = = (8065)
Total borrowing costs fRERAEE - 9,99 = 507 = 120574 131,164
Totalother changes EhEneg = 282 = 71% = 120574 150530
At 31 December 2021 R 127318 950,000 167,144 147609 718 120,215 701 2.471,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 19
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for

leases comprise the following. All these amounts
relate to lease rentals paid.

Within financing cash flows REER ©mF
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20
Trade payables for purchase of ERATHEERE

inventories due to: B OB
— third parties —%=7

— companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder

FEft D B E 5 B

Trade payables due to sub-contractors

Bills payable FERT =&
Financial liabilities measured BN E
at amortised cost ol =R

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

— RERBRREN A

(R BAEEBAIN - UARKERER)
REMER > RERREEEY
REMAERER (&)

ZHEARRERERTHE
RN o PTA %R RE
HEM S X (18R -

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®ET T AREBTT
(22,025) (29,548)
BESENRRENSE

2022 2021

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
1,105,141 1,003,156

4,893 5,667

1,110,034 1,008,823

659,271 621,489

70,469 194,113

1,839,774 1,824,425

BB RN EENEEBEHR
—FRBERAREREE -

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2

-

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 20

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date,

is as follows:

Within 1 month or on demand

More than 1 month but less than
3 months

More than 3 months

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

—fEARRFEIREKR
Be—EAELIR=EA

FE=1E A8

Annual Report 2022

EZRNRRENRE(E)
RBEEHR  BHRARRENR
ERBIBANRESTAT

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

1,787,216 1,711,229

38,353 75,733
14,205 37,463

1,839,774 1,824,425
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=BIEHIN

IAARME R EAL)

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 FERTR S R E MR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREKTT
Payables for staff related costs FET B THEREA A 120,097 136,034
Payables for transportation and JE AT 38 %) = R B Bl =2
insurance expenses 33,578 33,838
Payables for interest expenses FEARF BRI SZ 7,592 7,012
Payables for construction and purchase EENEEWE - HE
of property, plant and equipment NG INES 11,877 11,734
Deposits from sub-contractors DBEEZMNIES 42,139 38,985
Deposits from suppliers for contracts’ T?Ei"iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬂ?‘xh
bidding and performance NMEAES 14,516 24,792
Amounts due to third parties (Note (i) &5 =75 33 (K74 (i) 196,637 147,609
Amounts due to the Controlling e 4 HxHx%&i‘ﬁ 2= 5l
Shareholder and the companies EOUN
under his control
— non-interest bearing (Note (i) — DEtE (K1) 1,721 1,721
— interest bearing (Note (i) — SR (B (i) 216,023 155,423
Discounted bills and credit letters MBERBERERZ 408,100 1,202,215
Lease liabilities (Note 23) HEBEWZE23) 2,540 4,575
Others HAfth 39,254 40,480
Financial liabilities measured REHEK AT EN SR AE
at amortised cost 1,094,074 1,804,418
Payables for miscellaneous taxes FE{SHER 85,904 43,083
Derivative financial instruments: TESHTA -
— other derivatives — HfTET R 999 —
Provision for outstanding legal claims — REfHEREREEE 22,543 22,520
1,203,520 1,870,021

Notes:

Hist

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (i)

have no fixed terms of repayment.

(i) The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate of (i)
4.28% to 5.08% and repayable within one year.

(iii) The amounts are with fixed interest rate and repayable (iii)

within one year.

All of the accrued expenses and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised in profit or loss within one year or are

repayable on demand.

FRFEZLN B

AR B BN - AR R R EE

FEETRER -

ZEFHBERE - REEHE
4.28% £5.08% 5 B R —F R

B3R o

% BT IRIR B E A

FAEE -

EHERR—

P & &1 7 52 B At A5 SR TR 1A 1
SR FER SR ESEE -

ul,

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2

-ME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

& OB I R M ()
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 BANK LOANS 22 RITER
(a)  The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed (@) REEREBRRITERD
as follows: LU
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARKTT
Guaranteed by the Controlling LAY R B e 52 122 1l Y
Shareholder and a company REMER R, A B ZIER
under his control and/or BRI B A BB HER
pledged by securities of
a company under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder 270,000 200,000
Secured by property, plant and ~ UAAREBEAYZE © BE LR E
equipment and land use rights % 1 3 {5 F # {E4E 18 12 A
of the Group and pledged RS2 AR AR B Il Y 2 A)
by securities of a company W8 5 IR (HaE 22(c))
under the control of the
Controlling Shareholder
(Note 22(c)) 100,000 -
Secured by property, plant and ~ UAAREERYE - KE
equipment and land use A Ko s R R R AR R
rights of the Group (Htet22(c))
(Note 22(c)) — 140,000
Secured by property, plant and ~ UAAREBEAYZE « BE LR
equipment and land use rights & {5 FR 4 (B30 &2 A
of the Group, secured by 1R AR AR R AR Il Y 2 B
property, plant and land use NEWZ - BE &L E PR
rights of and guaranteed by BR (Kt 22(c)
companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder
(Note 22(c)) 135,000 220,000
505,000  (560,000)
Add: current portion of long-term 0 : REFERTTE ZKAYBIERZR 5
bank loans (Note 22(b)) (K17t 22(b)) 350,000 —
855,000 560,000

188 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022



22

(o)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BANK LOANS (continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed

SO B RRME @
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(REERAIN  UAREFBLL)

22 SRITERGE)

b AEENRHBRITERIN

as follows: LU
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Secured by property, plant and DAK%"EWF@% . ﬁ%
equipment and land use rights AR N M FRAE 1
of the Group, secured by A N2 DA AR SE AR I A B
property, plant and equipment 2D R RHEPE - -
and land use rights of and TRES Bt o L b e PR A
guaranteed by companies under &R (A1a£22(c))
the control of the Controlling
Shareholder (Note 22(c)) 350,000 390,000
Less: current portion of long-term & : KEIRITE R
bank loans BNHAER > (350,000) =
- 390,000
The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable AEBRRARITERNE
as follows: HIERIAT -
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKBTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FANIRF K 350,000 —
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREZFA - 390,000
350,000 390,000
At 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying (©) MR2022F 12 31 H » B A

value of the property, plant and equipment and
land use rights pledged for the Group’s bank
loans is RMB358.0 million (31 December 2021:
RMB367.0 million).

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB1,210.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB1,280.0 million) were
utilised to the extent of RMB861.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB555.0 million).

SEMRTEREERNY
X WEREE - THER
BEMRIEAEAARE358.0
BET(2021 412 318 :
AR¥E367.0BETT) °

@  MR2022%F12H31H A&
ErRITREEEARARKE
1,210.08 & Jt(2021 412
A31H: AR %1,280.08
&) EBRAARKS61.0

A& L(2021F12A318 :

ARES55.0B87T) ©

J
SERCUEER BROPRERARAE 18

-ME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEIERIN  AARKEREN)
22 BANK LOANS (continued)

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 28(b). At 31 December 2022, none of the
covenants relating to the bank loans had been
breached (31 December 2021: None).

23 LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREZFA
After 2 years but within 5 years “FRERFA

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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RITER (&)

C)

REERE TRITER K
AEKESREEITIINE

TR E R G A E

o AR BEIERHZE - 8
FEETWETTt” REH
HEERRETHBAR
%#"K% ﬁ //\b@]éféﬂ
% B — R IR SR BT 5
28(b) ° 2022 & 12 A 31
B BEERTMERITE
KB BRI R (2021 F12 A
31H : &) -

NN

ik ,\uﬁ )ﬂﬂ$} %*

HEAE

R202212 A31H HEABHIE

BERMT

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT

___________ 2000 0P
543 624

1,389 1,929
___________ A
4,472 7,128




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@)

Movements of current taxation in the consolidated

statement of financial position are as follows:

Income tax payable at 1 January

Exchange adjustments

Provision for income tax on the
estimated taxable profits for
the year (Note 7(a))

Income tax paid during the year

Income tax refunded

Income tax payable
at 31 December

»1 A1 BRERTSE
BEE 5, o B
FAHHERTFH

B FT1S B B4

(K13% 7(a))
FRBRAER
FRiS TR

B 12 A 31 B EMN TS

(Br=BIEHIN

IAARME R EAL)

BHMBERRRANAER

()

B4 BT KR 2% 70 #0 B 9
EEBHT :

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

241,356 212,960
3,825 (5,825)
13,012 34,345
(4,788) (4,500)
1,022 4,385
254,427 241,356

;
|

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S Ot B 75 3R 3% B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEEBEIN  UAREE ABA)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 EOHMBERRRANFEEH (Z)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o)  Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) ERERIELETIIB A EE -
The components of deferred tax assets RE G IS AR N R R A IR
recognised in the consolidated statement of EFIIRE EMAKE D RF
financial position and the movements during the T -

year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess Loss
of the related allowance Remeasurement
depreciation on frade of the
and government andother ~ Provisionfor fair value of
grants and receivables warranties, derivative
Unused related ~ Writedown  and contract and financial
taxlosses  depreciation  of inventories assets  legal claims ~ instruments Total
HRERTED EARAR
TERREUR JEUHUR Eifite
AR BARER AREEN  RERER {TEEHIR
i HRiTE E Lk FERE BRAR RMEE it
Deferred tax arising from: RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT EEENELRE ARETT  ARETm  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R E1R1A 63718 10,759 954 210833 29,251 (4,935) 370,580
Exchange adjusiments Ei#E (1) - - 26) (510) - (1,107
(Charged)/credited fo he consolidated KA ERR® (1) /3T A
statement of profit o loss (Note 7(a)) H&ng) (19,188) 3758 283) (621) 445 (3,958) (19,850)
At 31 Decamber 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021 £12A31 B
Ro02%1 A 1A 43959 14514 671 210,186 29,186 (8.8%3) 349,623
Exchange adjustments Exfg 89 - - 23 181 - 1033
(Charged)/creditd to the consolicated Rk (k) /HA
statement of profit or loss (Note 7))~ (4275)) (26,89 144 - 3723 (439) - (23,464)
At 31 December 2022 1020E12R318 17,89 14,658 671 213,93 28928 (8.8%3) 37,19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(©

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(r), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences
arising from certain subsidiaries of the Group of
RMB2,348.1 million at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB2,374.8 million), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Except for the
amount of RMB730.3 million which will not expire
under the relevant tax legislation, the remaining
unused tax losses at 31 December 2022 will
expire on or before 31 December 2026.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC amounted to
RMB916.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB995.4
million), of which no deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits was provided as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that such profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

24 AHMBRRRANAER (&)

AERELEHAEE

B A% B s 20 BT S B9 & 51 K
R A KB K F2022 F
12A31BEBASE S T M
BRRELERREAREE
BRAHREREZEARE
2,348.18H 8B (2021412
A31H: AR®2374878
BT ERELERIBEE © R
EEBBENBEaEAERRE
BE A R 2R SR BE A FE AR A A
HRNEET B AR ERS -
BRARKE7303HEB LT E
EBEBRBEETEm - &
TR 2022412 31 B &
B) A B 75 1B 18 1§ 7R 2026 FF
12 A 31 Bk BARTER ©

RERRELERAEE

R2022F12H31H ' £
AREEE P R B S BT B A
AIMRB R AN TR EEA
A R#¥916.1 8 8 7t (2021
F12H31H : AR 9954
BET)  HYBEREES
Ik 525 I E FE T R I AR T
MIBEEELEE  RAS
iN/NESI B2tk = == NS
REBSE  MEBEEZSE
FE A g g R Al & AR RAE
DR °

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
25 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

At 1 January K1 A1HE
Exchange adjustments ME B
Additional provisions made B TR ERIIMNE
Provisions utilised EBRAEE

At 31 December M®12 431 H

Less: amounts included as current
liabilities at the end of
the reporting period

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts
with its customers, the Group will rectify any defects
arising within one to five years from the date of
completion of the construction contracts, as required
by industry regulations in respective jurisdictions and
depending on the terms negotiated with each customer.
Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of the
expected settlement under these construction contracts
in respect of construction contracts completed within
one to five years prior to the end of the reporting period.
The amount of provision takes into account the Group’s
recent claim experience and is only made where a
warranty claim is probable.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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B mEMRERERE
BERNTHE

R E

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETT
225,098 233,798
(1,186) (8,120)
59,486 52,217
(46,313) (52,797)
237,085 225,098
(50,458) (38,973)
186,627 186,125

REAEEEETFIIVMEES
RGN - REEGERENE DA
BENITERBROIFTRE LR EE
EPEBMRR - BIEEANELE
BREINAHE-—ERFAEL
RERFE o EUE - BE IR EHIR
AI—ERAFATHRONELESRMR
BREREARNBHRERERENR
fEmFTMET IR - BB SR EAE
BIL AR RER - WERB A
HIRRIEAREFHR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEREIN « UAREE ABA)
26 EXFX - FERRE

@  HERAKESEH

7 SR B A G R
5t B0 R B A AR B
HRAGHERBBED - &
PEF L BRAR T AR
AR S BB SR

components of equity between the beginning and FIEAT -
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve loss Total
k& RHEE EXGHE ZitFR h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  AREBTR  ARETR ARETT ARBTT
(Note 26(c)  (Note 26(d)(j)  (Note 26(d)(v))
(Wiee)  (mE2say)  (HeEzea))
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 519,723 574,047 (15,269) (81,269) 997,232
Changes in equity for 2021: 021 FZREET !
Loss for the year EREE - - - (2,483 (2,483
Other comprehensive income LY Ee - - (28,402) - (28,402)
Total comprehensive income SARGES - - (28,402) (2,483) (30,885)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 3318
and 1 January 2022 Rk20251A1A 519,723 574,047 (43,671) (83,752) 966,347
Changes in equity for 2022: 0057 BEET
Loss for the year FREE - - - (5,579) (5,573)
Other comprehensive income 22 ks - - 50,689 - 50,689
Total comprehensive income SEYESE - - 50,689 (5,573) 45,116
At 31 December 2022 R202F12531R 519,723 574,047 7,018 (89,329) 1,011,463

. JB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

IAARE R EAL)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(b) Dividends

U]

(ii)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$Nil).

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the
year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$SNil).

Annual Report 2022

26 EX-REREE

(b)
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(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB AR - AARBAER)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 26 EX - RERRE(E)
(c)  Share capital () SN
Authorised and issued share capital: EERBBITRA
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares shares
RA%E L E
’000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR BETT T BETT
Authorised: EERAE :
At 1 January and M1A1ER
31 December, 12R318
at HK$0.1 each 0187/ 8K 12,000,000,000 1,200,000  12,000,000,000 1,200,000
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares shares
ROEA EE
R EE EE
’000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
Tk AR¥TR T ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued LER BB
and fully paid: RE&R
At 1 January and 31 December 11 A18& 12 A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723

Iiu

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

(i) Shares held under share award
scheme

The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share
Award Scheme. The Share Award Scheme
was terminated on 29 July 2020.

(iii)  Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the
difference between the carrying values of
the subsidiaries acquired/disposed and
the considerations paid/received under the
Group’s reorganisation; (ii) the difference
between the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the
Group and the considerations paid; and
(iii) the difference between the carrying
value of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the acquisition of a
business under common control in 2012.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of
association of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-
distributable. The appropriation to these
reserves is at discretion of the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. The PRC
statutory reserves can only be utilised for
predetermined means upon approval by
the relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012,
a reserve for production safety is required
to be set up and to be appropriated
at a fixed rate on the revenue of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC. The reserve can be utilised for
expenses or capital expenditures incurred
in connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the presentation
currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(u).

(Br=BIEHIN

IAARME R EAL)

26 BX - #HERRE(E)

o RENEEREN(E)

(iv)

(v)

REAE RS

RIRA R B P B
oA olnpEE NG FAER
ERAA - ZEHB
REVARME T
DIREETE A © (A
ZERBRENDEBRE
MEARMEZESRIS
RIE o RBUEE
12 7] A VEACAE A
HEMELEEE R
o

IEAN - ARIR B 20124
1 81 BHEAEKRAIEE
REDER - AEER
AR B K 37 A BT B A A
ARNIREEENE
ELOIRL L2 EE
& - ZEE R AE
IR ERTEEEM
EENBRANIENRR
io

BE 1B

EXFREEERESR
SNEIBHBHRRBE
515 P EE A RO HMEE
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B SE2U M & 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher equity shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, the Group defines adjusted net
debt as total debt (which includes bank loans,
discounted bills and credit letters, amounts due to
third parties and the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control (interest bearing),
trade and bills payables and lease liabilities) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash on
hand and in bank. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2022, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at
an acceptable level. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may issue new shares, return
capital to equity shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 26

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31

December 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

(BSHER - AR BEN)
BX - RERKRE ()

R 20224 K% 2021 12 A31A M
AEEISHEFEHRERL TN
™

31 31
December December
2022 2021
2021 & 2020 4
12H31H 124381 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT
Current liabilities: mENBLE -
Trade and bills payables B RN REMNRE 1,839,774 1,824,425
Amounts due to the Controlling JE - 422 B A BR e 52 L 2 o)
Shareholder and the companies EONEIE G
under his control
— interest bearing —Er e 216,023 155,423
Amounts due to third parties NS = RIAE 196,637 147,609
Accrued expense and other FERTR S M E b e
payables-lease liabilities HERE 2,540 4,575
Discounted bills and credit letters BRI ER M EAE 408,100 1,202,215
Bank loans RITER 855,000 560,000
3,518,074 3,894,247
Non-current liabilities: SEmEIALE -
Bank loans RITER - 390,000
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,932 2,553
Total debt B4 3,520,006 4,286,800
Less: Vo
— restricted deposits — REIMFR (701,144) (1,394,784)
— cash and cash equivalents — RERBEEEFEY (219,455)  (284,219)
Adjusted net debt BARFEL 2,599,407 2,607,797
Total equity and adjusted capital REREARE ARG 1,011,463 1,151,998
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KRB FEHEE KRR 257% 226%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

7% R o B AT 2 A 1
A AAIRERS o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

IAARE R EAL)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the material

related party transactions entered into by the Group

during the year are set out below.

(@)

202

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control

Purchase of materials BE M R RS
and services

Net increase in interest bearing
advances received from related — E\FUE HNSFEE

parties

SHE R R

FTEEAF S

Sales of raw materials
Interest expense from interest
bearing advances

Further details on guarantees provided by related
parties for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed
in Notes 22(a) and 22(b).

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
directors of the Company as disclosed in Note 8,
is as follows:

RS BT
BRRGTEIEK

Short-term employee benefits
Retirement schemes contributions

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

EXBBAIRS
BRI 5 81 15 sk A 2B 0 R A9

R P REEHIN  REBERFEANFIL
HEARE TR 2T °

(@)  EERRABCR R EZEHIMQ

AR 5

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’'000
AR®BTRE ARETT
98 73

60,600 25,924
8,796 928

7,805 9,996

B T A SBRITERIE
HOERNE — T FH TR
FL22(a) K2 22(o) #255 ©

L) EBEEAEHH
AEBETZEBAEBNF

B SEmH s RENA
RAEEXEFIBENT

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT
3,115 4,516
181 198
3,296 4,714

HMEEeER [ 8 TRA]
A (R EEB(D)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s

business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial

risk management policies and practices used by the

Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and contract assets. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted deposits, bills receivables
and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit standing, for which
the Group considers to represent low credit risk.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
refundable rental deposits is considered to be
low, taking into account the remaining lease term
and the period covered by the rental deposits.

Except for the guarantee letters given by the
Group as set out in Note 30(a), the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in Note 30(a).

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

IAARE R EAL)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At 31 December 2022
and 2021, there are no significant concentrations
of credit risk through exposure to individual
customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate.
The Group generally requires customers to
settle progress billings and retentions receivable
in accordance with contract terms and other
debts in accordance with agreements. Except
for retentions receivable, financial and contract
assets for contract work are considered past due
once billings have been made and revenue has
been recognised, respectively. Retention terms of
one to five years may be granted to customers for
retentions receivable. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for financial
assets and contract assets arising from other
construction contracts at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix.

Annual Report 2022

TREAREERESMIANIR
EfE (&)

EERR (&)

ETRMEERECREE

AEENEERBREERS
BEEMERIBRAFE  m
ERE P ETEITH
R BYASENERNEE
g S aa N ST =)
N B E 755 A R B B B AE o
R 2022% %2021 12 A 31
H HMERRSEETFPHE
ANEEEHER -

AEBEHMETFETES
EEFE - ZFHHIER
FaE2IMARESE FKE S
ZNREES - XA REPE
ERBEFREMERER
BEREN AKEBREER
KEPREESNIGREEE
B R KR E & RARIE
ek ke A AR - BRI
REEIN REEREE
7 B R H R B R BERR A
R i - 2 P R U AR
BeER -ERFHNRER
ReBE AKETEEXR
EERX MBI

AEEZBERERREERE
EtEzFEMBEHRERRE
ANSHEAEREMTRES
FERANEREERARE
B2 ER R



28

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 cRREREERSHIAENDR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(a)  Credit risk (continued) (@) EERK (&)
Financial assets and contract assets ERMEEREGREE(£Z)

(continued)

In 2021, certain customers of the Group, in
particular, some property developer customers
(the “Defaulted Customers”), have encountered
liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of the
macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19
pandemic, and have defaulted on their debts.
Accordingly, there was a significant increase in
credit risk for financial assets and contract assets
arising from contracts with these Defaulted
Customers.

The calculation of loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets arising from
construction projects as at 31 December 2022
and as at 31 December 2021 were carried out
by an independent specialist, namely Vincorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, with experience
in expected credit loss calculation.

H2021F # - A& B X &
BF - LHEDERERETP
UE%%?D@ ERE
BRERTEEEEATE
EWW/}N@J R - AR
RE® - Bt LEHNES
ERERNEHEERER
BENE A REBRAE

720224 12 A 31 H &% 2021
F12A3N AR IRES A
RNEZREEF KR EREE
MEERES TR EG RN
EEBRTELSRNELE
%A\ Vincorn Consulting
and Appraisal Limited #7175t

st
H o
A

2,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IAARE R EAL)

(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets

(continued)

The following table gives information about
the expected loss rates for financial assets
and contract assets arising from construction
contracts related to Defaulted Customers as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Financial assets and contract
assets arising from contracts
with arising from construction
contracts related to the
Defaulted Customers

Financial assets and contract
assets arising from contracts
with arising from construction
contracts related to the
Defaulted Customers

@ FERR#E)

TREAREERESMIANIR
EfE (&)

THMEEREGREE (&)

TRV HE E2022F12 A
31HKk2021F12A31HA
BENRFPELIS RMERK
TREENEREENTER

EEERER} o
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIEIEE REAE EBERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR
EHENEFPHELIER
RS EEE
REeEREE
73.3% 640,763 469,578
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
FEHEEEX  REHAE BEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
EHENRFPHEIER
HRNESREE
ReREE
74.5% 753,154 561,175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

The expected loss rates are estimated based on
the weighted-average recovery rate of troubled
debts derived from historical market data
and have been adjusted for industry specific
information and forward-looking information. The
Group has identified the enterprise prosperity
index and real estate industry enterprise
prosperity index to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the weighted-average
recovery rate of troubled debts derived from
historical market data based on expected
changes in these factors.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEERIN AAREREM)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets
arising from construction contracts from other
customers as at 31 December 2022.

Current (not past due) mEh (Re i)
Within 1 year past due BHR DR —
More than 1 year past due BHARA—F

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets as
at 31 December 2021.

Current (not past due) mEh (R i)
Within 1 year past due BHR DR — 4
More than 1 year past due B AR R —
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28 SREREEFRSMTIANAR
BEE (&)

EERR (&)

THMEEREGREE (&)

TRIIE B BEASER 2022
F12A3EBREEEMARE
FRIRERAEKIEERR
EREEREREEFEER
ZEERR&EHEREBX
ZBR} o

2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

EHEEE KREKE BREHE

% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBWTR

0.7% 281,415 1,878

10.0% 1,348,197 134,489
57.4% 3,726,209 2,139,248

5,355,821 2,275,615

TRIBMH A B A& E 7 2021
F12HA31BERE S R EE
FBRFREREEMERZ
FEREKBEHEHRBAZ
&Rt

2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance

BHERER  EEAE BREE

% RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETT

1.0% 446,625 4,275
9.6% 1,167,359 111,522

58.0% 3,505,580 2,031,737

5,119,664 2,147,634
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets and contract assets

(continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in

respect of financial assets and contract assets

during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January

Exchange adjustment

Amounts written-off during
the year

Impairment losses recognised
during the year

Impairment losses written-back
during the year

Balance at 31 December

M1 A1 B z&R

BEE 5 R
F OB H) & B8

FRCHERREREE

F AR LR ERE

12 A 31 B Z 48R

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

TREAREERESMIANIR

BfE (&)

@ EERR#E)

THMEERECREE (&)

FRNEHESZREEMNARAE
ENEERERESNT

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREBFT
2,708,709 1,973,667
47,445 (19,627)
(36,707) (93,171)

124,001 906,799

(98,255) (58,959)

2,745,193 2,708,709
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

IAARE R EAL)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(0)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed
by the Group, which includes the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of RMB248,759,000,
while the Group had current liabilities of
RMB4,699,009,000 including bank loans within
one year or on demand of RMB855,000,000.

In this regard, the directors of the Company have
identified various initiatives to address the Group’s
liquidity needs, which include the following:

o The Group continues to improve its
operating cash flows by accelerating
the progress billings and collection of
trade receivables, actively participating
in bidding, negotiating with suppliers on
payment terms, and reduction of operation
expenses;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

o The Group continues the negotiations with
various banks, including but not limited to:

(i) renew the short-term bank loans
upon maturity (see Note 22(a)); and/
or

(i) provide additional bank facilities to
the Group.

° Controlling Shareholder and a company
under his control have committed to
provide the necessary financial support,
including but not limited to:

(i) renewal of the loans from Controlling
shareholder and a company under his
control upon maturity (see Note 21);
and/or

(if) provision of additional loan facilities
from Controlling Shareholder and
a company under his control, as
needed.

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
current rates at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest dates the Group can be required
to pay:

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) ) TmBESERR(E)
2022
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERRESRY
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within  1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or on less than less than at 31
demand 2 years 3 years Total December
—£R BA-F BAME M12A318
FEER BIRWE EBIRZE st WEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR

Non-derivative financial FiTELRAR

liabilities:
Trade and bills payables BHEMTK

ANE 1,839,774 - - 1,839,774

Accrued expenses and other  1RE SR ART EH)

payables measured eSS R

at amortised cost Hi R 1,106,809 - - 1,106,809
Lease liabllities HE8E - 570 1,567 2,137
Bank loans RITER 872,938 - - 872,938

1,839,774

1,094,074
1,932
855,000

2022

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow

BEAMRRAL (RE) R

More than

Within 1 year but

1 year or on less than
demand 2 years
—FR BBA—F
FEER BHRWE
RMB’000 RMB’000

Total

At
RMB’000

ARBTR ARB TR ARBT R

Derivatives settled gross: CAEHTA T EE%
Other forward foreign HitmHINES L) -
exchange contracts:

— outflow — (123,417 (10,635)
— inflow —ARA 130,310 12,387

(134,052)
142,697
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB AR - AARBAER)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 cRAREERSMIANAAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) ) TABESER(E)
2021
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERRMBER S
More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or on less than less than at 31
demand 2 years 3 years Total December
—FR HBih—F B W12A317
FEER BIRWE EIRZEF @it HEREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Non-derivative financial HTEEHEE
liabilities:
Trade and bills payables BHERTK
ENRE 1,824,425 - - 1,824,425 1,824,425
Accrued expenses and other  $REEHB AR5 2 H)
payables measured RS R
at amortised cost Hit AR 1,813,670 - - 1813670 1,804,418
Lease liabilities REARE - 700 2,290 2,990 2,553
Bank loans RITEH 586,744 394,289 - 981,033 950,000
2021
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARABRERE () /TRA
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years Total
—£R” HBE—F A F
FEEK BARmME BORAE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARET T
Derivatives settled gross: E&BITETLBE
Other forward foreign HibmEINES L -
exchange contracts:
— outflow — i (400,463) (280,726) (16,214) (697,403)
— inflow —mA 433,398 301,714 17,413 752,525
\
-

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEERIN AAREREM)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest bearing borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate

profile of the Group’s bank borrowings at
the end of the reporting period:

Fixed rate borrowings: BEENREE

Bank loans RITEH

Variable rate borrowings: BBHREE

Bank loans RITEH

Total bank borrowings ROEELE

Fixed rate bank borrowings BERZRTE
as a percentage of total hR1T1E
bank borrowings BEEA
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TREAREERESMIANIR
EfE (&)

2022

Effective
interest rate
 GYIES

%

3.95%-7.80%

4.20%-4.35%

IESEI

MERBRIEERTANDL
EEIARRESRERATS
FERBFMKBEER o A
SE®MMERREEREE
BREE - RIBMNEREE
MERZEHMEED S AE
BASRSREN TR M
AVMELEE RS

i)  FREE
TRADANEEIRTT

ERHmEHROF
RIEHE -

i

i

+

2021
Effective
interest rate

BRAx

RMB’000 %  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

505,000 3.85%-7.80% 560,000

350,000 4.35% 390,000
855,000 950,000

59% 59%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
() Interest rate risk (continued) @) FIERE R (&)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBEIN
At 31 December 2022, it is estimated R2022F12 4318 -
that a general increase/decrease of i 5 i ) 2= B2 BE 32 )
100 basis points in interest rates, with R 4100 {5 £ 2
all other variables held constant, would M A8 A fth Al B E &
have increased/decreased the Group’s HIETE  AEEK
accumulated losses of approximately 25T R m, R
RMB3.5 million (2021: approximately HWAREISAEETT
RMB3.9 million). (2021 F : HAR K
39E&ETT) °
The sensitivity analysis above indicates EXHRRE D TE
the instantaneous change in the Group’s A E BT &) E
profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits/ /(518) RARBFE
(accumulated losses) assuming that the S (RETEE) & A
change in interest rates had occurred at R BRAER
the end of the reporting period and had BH)ERNHERD
been applied to remeasure those non- BB ERANEN
derivative financial instruments held by EAEBEFFEAESR
the Group which expose the Group to SERREHAREAR
cash flow interest rate risk at the end of REmER XK
the reporting period. The impact on the HOTESR TR - ¥
Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained RNEBOFEBFE
profits/(accumulated losses) is estimated (&) MRBFE
as an annualised impact on interest (RFtEE)NTET)
expenses of such a change in interest TERB RN K EB) L
rates. The sensitivity analysis is performed FERLHNFEF
on the same basis for 2021. 2T DAmE - BRAE
DT THIREL 2021 G AH
[RIFYELEEETT o

2t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=E A -

28

IAARE R EAL)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through revenue from and costs incurred for
contract work, purchases of imported materials
which give rise to receivables, payables, inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group, and cash balances that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, RMB, HK$ and
Qatar riyal (“QAR”).

A significant portion of the Group’s business
is overseas construction contracts, and these
contracts are generally settled in currencies
other than RMB. The Group uses forward foreign
exchange contracts to minimise its exposure to
currency risk arising therefrom.

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk

The Group hedges portion of its foreign
currency exposure in respect of revenue
from overseas construction contracts
and uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its currency risk until
the settlement date of foreign currency
receivables.

Annual Report 2022

28

TREAREERESMIANIR
EfE (&)

B R

AEBTERBELNER
AR ZHEMNER 2R
B LASNEY B B AT E R B I
F B AKREARQE
e 5 R S FE R IR 2 4
BNARTRKA BEE
AMBEENRAAZES
R - EE M IRER A E ¥
EER/ETT  BUT - FK
TR BE - IWmLA
BB pnm s ARY - BTR
REEER A FEmARE]) -

AEBEBNEARD RE
SNEEAR  MZEER—
RIAARB AN & ¥ 4
o AKEEFERERIINES
%) EAFRERMEEAZH
EEERR o

(i) PN R B

AEBEBINTIES
(] Y A O #B 73 SINEE R
BRAEfTEH - A
EHIMNEGHEEE
E¥RER  BEEINE
U IRMAEEE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) @) B (&)

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk (i) Eh N R B (42)
(continued)
The forward foreign exchange contracts RHINES DRAREE
are used to economically hedge forecast PR AN ST E Y
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities RS  EEE
denominated in foreign currencies. Change MaE - ZEINES
in the fair value of the forward foreign HRREERED
exchange contracts is recognised in profit FAEE(R M6
or loss (see Note 6(a)). At 31 December (a)) o # Z=2022%F
2022, the net fair value of forward foreign 12 A31H » & 4
exchange contracts was a gain of RMB8.5 SN ERALEER
million (31 December 2021: a gain of Bl ARE85H
RMB54.5 million) recognised as derivative % (202112 H
financial instruments. 1R : WmARK
545B &) HER
RITESBTIA -

In respect of the remaining receivables, AR BEERENEE
payables and forecast transactions AN BB STHE R
denominated in currencies other than the HEABERERR - B
functional currency of the entity to which EREBBHRSM
they relate, the Group ensures that the net 5 ASKEBBEY
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by LR LA EAfE R BB E
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot S ENE AR IE AT
rates where necessary to address short- BN EER - R
term imbalances. JF B B ik E AR AT

BKEE -

2t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) B (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk i) HAEZTHEYRR

The following tables detail the Group’s TR FFALAN S B P
exposure at the end of the reporting period FEHIRAZIAEER
to currency risk arising from recognised B RIR I RE & B BAS
assets or liabilities denominated in a BEGTENEBRE
currency other than the functional currency EXBEEENEE
of the entity to which they relate. For Bz o BLEFITE -
presentation purposes, the amounts of the WK B R A EE T A
exposure are shown in RMB, translated ARETDIR - EAR
using the spot rates at the end of the R BRSR A 3R B b =
reporting period. Differences resulting from BmE - WANBEHRE
the translation of the financial statements VHNSE TS Y B 75 R 3%
of foreign operations into the Group’s RASBERNZYEE
presentation currency are excluded. EERNETE -

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 cRREREERSHIAENDR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o  EERRE)
(ii)  Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) AZTNEERRE)
2022

UD  Ewo  SGD AU GBP  CHF  RMB  HKS QAR
v En MR A KB Rt ARR En ~ERAR
RMBUOOD RMBOOO RMBOO RMB'000 RMBUOOD RMBOOO RMBOO RMB000  AMBI000
ARBTR ARMTL ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARRTR ARMTZ

Contract assets AEAE 8,991 - 9 = = = = = =
Tadeandbilsreceivadles ~ EFEUFRENZE 236,051 3,114 49886 174162 297,79 51559 - 35 T4

Deposts, prepaymentsand &% EfFR

other receivables Efpet 242326 41,820 6,220 1574 49,800 206,943 1000 37,421 1042
Cashand cash equivalents B2 RELZEN 57304 37% - 12 295 - 9 - -
Tedeandbilspeyables ~ BAENFRERZE (25286 (5259  (115) - 0t (527 - - -
Accedexpensssend R RARERR

ofher payables (234,682) - - - (13,74) - (1,019,734) - -

Grossexposurearsng~~ CEZAERAE
fomrecognised assels  FEENEREE

and liabities 8479 SLMT 56,082 175748 334701 243285 (1,018,725 340656 82715
Notional amounts of BlEES Ay

forward foreign EBERY

gxchange contracts 1545

used s economic

Pedges e - - ) @18 (5K - - -

Netexposurearsng fom ~ BEAEERAR
recogrised assets HELNERSE
and liabities 240398 ST 56,082 174001 272,585 227,444 (1,018,725 340656 82,715

Iiu
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBERBAIN - AARBARER)
28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o  E%RR(E)
Exposure to currency risk (continued) i) FAZTHEERRE)
2021
UsD Euro SGD AUD GBP CHF RMB HKS QAR
i Er Amgn Bn EE il AR En FEEAE
RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Contract assefs AREE 2087 - 1% - - - - - -
Tadeandbilsrecaivables ~ EFEUGREAZE 209801 61524 73804 7052 319170 48065 - 481 68874
Deposts, prepaymentsand %+ BFR
other receivables EfoRI 20547 4864 1375 15 5156 191426 1080 3490 974
Cashand cash equivalents B2 RELZEN 8179 50750 - 8 3298 = 12 = -
Tadeand bils payebles ~ EZERFRERZE  (18726)  (31,086) - - 19 (14499 - - -
Accedexpensssend ERTR R RAERR
ofher payables (223,834) - - - (14769 - (1,061,315 - -
Grossexposurearsng~~ CEFAEREE
fomrecognised assels  FEEHEREE
and liabilties 23064 124450 87674 72135 360731 224996 (1,000244) 329741 78618
Notional amounts of BB e
forward foreign EREAD
exchange contracts i558
used s economic
hedges 476 (089 - {6654 (474 02 - - -
Neteosurearsngfom ~ BEZEERER
recognised assefs MELNERTE
and liabities B8 91,968 87674 25481 218276 204761 (1,000244) 329741 18,618

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 cRAREERSMIANAAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o  EERRE)
(ili)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BREIM
The following table indicates the THRERMWASEER
instantaneous change in the Group’s WEEBRASZERR
profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits/ B HINES BE R A 5% B
(accumulated losses) that would arise if Hﬁﬁﬁﬁmib RE& A
foreign exchange rates to which the Group BHEMA B REREE
has significant exposure at the end of the HREE ZK%‘%IE’\J
reporting period had changed at that date, %Rféi“ I8, (&) &
assuming all other risk variables remained Rl EFEJ/( 258
constant. ?El ) B BBy A
2022 2021
Increase/ Decrease/
(decrease)/in (increase)/
profit after in loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) decrease/ (decrease) increase/
in foreign (increase) in in foreign (decrease) in
exchange accumulated exchange in retained
rates losses rates profits
BT HE W& &R
®m, ) A, (3 )
FMEE B = R Z&HEE HINEE B 3 MR %'J/FEJ
EFH(TRE) R 8m)  EACRE)  #in/ Chd
RMB’000 RMB’OOO
AR®T T ARBTIT
Usb T 15% 34,969 5% 12,813
(15%) (34,969) (5%) (12,813)
Euro BT 10% 3,892 15% 12,878
(10%) (3,892) (15%) (12,878)
SGD N T 10% 5,608 10% 8,373
(10%) (5,608) (10%) (8,373)
AUD JBIT 10% 17,409 20% 6,187
(10%) (17,409) (20%) (6,187)
GBP HEE 15% 40,441 10% 23,538
(15%) (40,441) (10%) (23,538)
CHF I A BR 10% 22,744 10% 20,780
(10%) (22,744) (10%) (20,780)
RMB AR 15% (152,809) 10% (105,039)
(15%) 152,809 (10%) 105,089
HK$ BT 15% 51,098 5% 16,487 |
(15%) (51,098) (5%) (16,487)
QAR R B A 10% 8,115 5% 3,931

(10%) (8,115) (5%) (3,9. w_‘ B

SERCUEER BROPRERARAE 221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SEEREEREBIENAA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) ) B (&)

(iii)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation
of the instantaneous effects on each of
the Group entities’ profit/loss after tax
and retained profits/(accumulated loss)
measured in their respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency.
The sensitivity analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(BRRHHEAIN - UARERE)
THEREERETMTIANAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEE (&)
(continued)
(e) Fair value measurement AAEBEE

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (i) RAREBEFENS
measured at fair value BMEERERE
Fair value hierarchy RAIEEER

The following table presents the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as

TRHIIR IR B
BimEERFE 13/
REEFE - EHR
RERBEBFER
SEeMIAZAR
BEIBES=EIR
BEEMR - 2E&MA
BT AT AR
ABREREZME
IATNRRBIETE -

follows:
. Level 1 valuations: Fair value . FAE H E:
measured using only Level 1 inputs, EXEEER
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in ) A SR (D
active markets for identical assets A==
or liabilities at the measurement HEEESE
date. BIEEm S
B R 48 58 B
B)FTENA
fEME °

\
\
CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I & BEBT S 3R T ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEREEREMIAENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) () NAEERE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities (U] BRAAREBEFENE
measured at fair value (continued) MEEREE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAIEEER (E)
0 Level 2 valuations: Fair value . FoE 4B
measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. FRAE2EH
observable inputs which fail to meet A B (BD R
Level 1, and not using significant REF1ER
unobservable inputs. Unobservable AR ] B R
inputs are inputs for which market BIGFE0NA
data are not available. nEE - BT
EHEAEAT
A B g A &1
B TAHR
AR AR
BEENAS T 5 &K
& e A2
b
0 Level 3 valuations: Fair value . E3E A
measured using significant ERAEARRT
unobservable inputs. Bl g A BUR
STEMANE
& °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(% RAEHEIEIN - UARBBER)
28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHERERESERSBIANAA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(continued)

()  Fair value measurement (continued) () RAEETE(E)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities 0] RAAREBEFENE
measured at fair value (continued) REEREE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAEEER (E)

Fair value

Fair value measurements
measurements as at as at 31
31 December 2022 December 2021
categorised into categorised into
12021 %

12431 H

R2022%12A 31 H AV
AABENESER HESER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1
E1R #28 F18
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETT

Recurring fair value measurements E¥# AR EEE

Assets: BE
Investment in securities REES 9,682 - =
Derivative financial instruments: TESRIE

- Forward exchange contracts — REINER L - 9,549 54,514
Liabilities: =7
Derivative financial instruments: TESRTIR

- Forward exchange contracts — RENESH - 999 -
During the year ended 31 December 2022, R & =2022F 12 A
there were no transfers between Level S1HLEEFE ' #1
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of RE2EZME 8
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise AN FEIEME
transfers between levels of fair value EEIEE - AEE
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting BRBVREEEZ®R
period in which they occur. FHRERAAEE

BRzHENERRA

- <
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B OF B 7 3R 3% BT &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR ABLL)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(B=E A -

28

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(e

Fair value measurement (continued)

U]

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by
discounting the contractual forward price
and deducting the current forward rate.
The discount rate used is derived from
Shibor Swap curve as at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair values of the investment in
securities are included in the Level 1
category, which have been derived from
the quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active
market.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December 2022
and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2022, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Commitments in respect of MEF - WRRF
buildings, machinery and
equipment

— Contracted for — BEH
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not
committed to enter into any lease contract that is

not yet commenced.

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2022, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:

Guarantees for construction BESRIE
contracts’ bidding,

performance and retentions

As of the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company do not consider it
probable that a claim in excess of the provision
for warranties provided by the Group will be made
against the Group under any of the guarantees.
The maximum liability of the Group as of the end
of the reporting period under the guarantees
issued is the amount disclosed above.

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)
29 &R

@  BEAEGE

N2022%12 A31H * A
B B 75 TR 3% AP R B 2 AN
EEREBEENFAENT :

2022
RMB’000
ARBT R

2021
RMB’000
ARBTIT
SRR R IE

35,026 35,026

H E2022%F12 A31H © &
& B M AR AT AR R
HMITHHEAR -

30 TARERE
(a) BE LR

R2022F 12 A31H » A&
BB TYIER

2022 2021
RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETT

BH MR B & B ELR

558,422 749,875

RBEHR - ARBEFER
AT B IR AR IR (E (] 42
RUAEERLBAEANEH
PR RERBHERR -
AEERFEEHRRIEE H
HERNESEETAS XA

TBZE%E)]i%E © i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(B=E A -

30

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(o)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(i)

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India, both wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, jointly received
a notice that they are being sued by a
former sub-contractor in India in respect
of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated
in the sub-contract agreement entered
into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former sub-contractor. Shenyang Yuanda
has made a counterclaim against this sub-
contractor for non-performance of the sub-
contract agreement. On 30 September
2016, a first instance court judgement
has been rendered in favour of Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India and pursuant to
which the former sub-contractor shall pay
to Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India
damages in the amount of INR81.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB6.9
million) plus accrued interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims
(continued)

)

(continued)

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India later on filed
appeals and as at the date of these
financial statements, the lawsuit is under
reviewed before the Hon’ble High Court
of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may
amount to approximately INR1,410.8
million (equivalent to approximately
RMB118.6 million) plus accrued interest.
Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India deny
any liability in respect of the appeal filed by
the former sub-contractor and, based on
legal advice, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the court
will find against Shenyang Yuanda and/or
Yuanda India. No provision has therefore
been made in respect of this claim.

(Br=BIEHIN

IAARME R EAL)

30 WMREBE(E)

b) BEEEBRRNHARE

(%&)

)

(&)

LRI D B EEG =R
AREBEANINEEHEZR
i _E5F - MR AR
WERH  FAER
%= Z Hon'ble & % )&
P o &SRR
K REEHEER
BLEME FEHLE
HERTERREAYE
1,410.8 B BEHEEL
(HERARE118.6
B & ) i e Et A
B o BEERARER
ENERRE@LILRT D
BENRLEA L5
MRBEAERR - &
ARIERWTAEE
EgAEERAR
SR AEE WA
D A BE 1L T8 R 25T
RHE -

;
|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
& 5 B 75 3R 3R B 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AR EEERT)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(B=E A -

30

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(o)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(continued)

(i

In 2022, A wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd (“Yuanda
UK”) received a notice that Yuanda UK
together with other various parties were
being sued by Crest Nicholson in United
Kingdom relating to defects of Admiralty
Quarter development. Yuanda UK was the
glazing sub-contractor for one building
constructed by Ardmore Construction
Limited, the main contractor. The Crest
Nicholson estimated total cost for remedial
works required to address all the defects
amounting to GBP24.0 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB201.5 million). Based
on the confirmation with professional
indemnity insurers of Yuanda UK, this
claim falls for cover under the professional
indemnity policy agreed between the
insurer and Yuanda UK, but the coverage
of the amount was not able to determine
as the resulting loss allocated to Yuanda
UK has not been determined. Thus, the
directors of the Company cannot reliably
estimate the remaining compensation
borned by Yuanda UK. No provision in this
regard has therefore been made.
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30 HARERE(E)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(continued)

(ii)

In addition to the lawsuit mentioned in
Note 30(b)(i) and Note 30(b)(ii), certain
subsidiaries of the Group are named
defendants on other lawsuits, arbitrations
or tax disputes in respect of construction
work carried out by them. As at the
date of these financial statements, these
lawsuits, arbitrations and disputes are
under reviewed before courts, arbitrators
or tax bureaus. If these subsidiaries are
found to be liable, the total expected
monetary compensation may amount to
approximately RMB285.3 million, of which
RMB22.5 million has already been provided
for and the Group’s bank deposits and
other deposits of RMB74.3 million at 31
December 2022 was frozen by courts or
insurance companies for certain of these
lawsuits or disputes. Based on legal advice
and assessment from the directors of the
Company on these lawsuits, arbitrations
or tax disputes, the directors of the
Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against
these subsidiaries of the Group on these
lawsuits, arbitrations and tax disputes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

©

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain
construction materials supplied by the Group was
found to contain asbestos in two construction
projects in Australia. The Group is cooperating
with relevant authorities on investigation into the
reason for the reported cases. As at the date of
these financial statements, asbestos was not
found in other projects constructed by the Group
and there was no related legal action against
the Group in Australia. As the investigation is yet
to be completed and claims against the Group
from contractors have not been quantified, the
directors of the Company cannot reliably estimate
the repair cost and potential compensation for
projects found with asbestos. No provision in this
regard has therefore been made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 A7) FE TH B B B AR R R
POSITION
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

#at AR®T ARETT

Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A IEPNEEL 2,143,574 1,998,020
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TR RI8 B H b & R
receivables 1,015 342
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEFEY 286 1,557
1,301 1,899
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and JE & S e L A FE S 3K
other payables 1,133,412 1,033,572
Net current liabilities REBEETFE (1,132,111) (1,031,673)
NET ASSETS FEE 1,011,463 966,347
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXR#EE 26
Share capital A&7 519,723 519,723
Reserves e 491,740 446,624
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,011,463 966,347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(REEERIN AAREREM)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, and a
new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

32

BZ2022F 12831 HLEEED
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Al RE s RS
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F12 A31 HIEFERARERNZIA
1E5] R —IERTER (BRI R 5 4
BIE75: - (RERAAY) - WERZ
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AREEASREEM A TEE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
LA B 8z, &
ez St AR

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts and amendments to IFRS 17, Insurance contracts
BRI B EEANE17S - Rigs /A RBEIEHEREENE 175 (BFTAR) -
VN A=

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure
of accounting policies

REETHERISE 1 5E (BRI AR) REBR M B mE £ EBREE 25% (BFIA) -
AR

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction
R ERE 125 (BEIAN) - 18 —X G ELREER B (E1HE R ELFH A

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

FREFHERIE 85 (IBRIA) - Bav1data €%

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
REEERIE K (BRTE) - WAEAEBRHLITD

Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current liabilities with covenants

REFTERF 1R (ERTAR) - WERE TR E

Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a sale and Leaseback
BRI REERIE 165, - ERHBCHERE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture

R B 5 3 5 AR BN 55 10 5% e B BR @ 5t BISE 28 5% (fERTAN) -
KEZHAEE N A G SR MR EE L &t &
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1 January 2023

202341 A1H

1 January 2023

202341 A 1H

1 January 2023
202341 H1H

1 January 2024
202441 H1H

1 January 2024
202441 H1H

1 January 2024
20241 H1H

To be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZBHEBIN - UARKERES)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 HZE2022F12831HILLEERE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED FEMEERERPIERT - FRTE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR AlRREBAEERNTE (&)

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (continued)

Based on the assessment on the impact of these ERHZFEITENTME - B
developments, so far, the Group has concluded that the A Nilxﬂﬂﬂwﬁﬁ AEETE A
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact i - WRABEFMT AR gL 4R
on the consolidated financial statements. .él\ﬁ?ﬁ&#&%z’”t)?ij(?’

IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY AND ULTIMATE 33 EHEEZRARRBRRERS
HOLDING PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate BE2022F12H31H  XARE
holding company of the Company as at 31 December EREARANBEEZERARAE
2022 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated RERAR  ZARERBHBR
in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate holding party BHEEMAK - BlE2022F12 A
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 to be the 31 HIE - RA R REIER T =%

Controlling Shareholder. The immediate holding entity IRARER - ZEEER AR TR
does not produce financial statements available for HABERRITERE ©

public use.

.7‘5

CEROTUREEH ER PR R 2

23

-mn



L

236

Five Year Financial Summary

TFHMERE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrBHIBHEN  UARKBEN)
Results E4
Revenue N
(Loss)/profit from operations BE(ER)/FHE
Finances costs BEKA
Profit/(loss) before taxation BATFE/ (58)
Income tax PR
Profit/(loss) for the year FENFIE/(F8)
Attributable to: AR A LR
Equity shareholders of the AREIHER
Company
Non-controlling interests ER
Profit/(loss) for the year FERFIE/(F8)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Non-current assets EnEEE
Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities nBaE
Net current assets MEEEFE
Total asssts less current liabilities & ERRE & &
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
NET ASSETS FEE
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital LN
Reserves i
Total equity attributable to ARRRER (S
equity shareholders BmEE
of the Company
Non-controlling interests R
TOTAL EQUITY MR

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 F 20214 2020 F 20194 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETR
3,263,601 3,055,262 2,735,572 4,041,253 4,615,704
(38,749) (838,774) (363,080) 338,541 222,929
147,354 (102,860) (227,642) (142,523) (68,767)
108,605 (941,634) (590,722) 196,018 154,162
(36,476) (54,195) (99,903) (106,198) (65,991)
72,129 (995,829) (690,625) 89,820 88,171
72,129 (995,829) (690,625) 89,820 79,119

= = = = 9,052

72,129 (995,829) (690,625) 89,820 88,171
892,186 916,939 1,000,387 1,134,011 1,355,031
5,006,845 5,863,411 7,376,081 8,399,134 8,706,332
4,699,009 5,049,674 5,686,072 6,624,937 7,048,236
307,836 813,737 1,690,009 1,774,197 1,658,096
1,200,022 1,730,676 2,690,396 2,908,208 3,013,127
188,559 578,678 589,644 176,513 305,000
1,011,463 1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
491,740 632,275 1,581,029 2,211,972 2,188,404
1,011,463 1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127
1,011,463 1,151,998 2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127
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